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 1               (Start of audio tape.)

 2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  We are

 3     recording.  This is the time and place set for a hearing

 4     regarding an order titled, "Order Continuing the

 5     Indefinite Stay in Development Period," signed by the

 6     Department in December 2007, signed by Jeff Peppersack,

 7     Bureau Chief Water Allocation Bureau.  And it's in the

 8     matter of permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B.

 9     Kugler, and at the time I think it listed Northwest Farm

10     Credit Services as well.

11               It seems to me that Northwest Farm Credit

12     Services is no longer involved; or is that correct, Mr.

13     Kugler?

14               MR. KUGLER:  That is correct.  They should

15     have filed the fact that I paid the mortgage off back in

16     2003, but they didn't do that, or 2004.  But they have

17     filed it now, so it's in my name alone at this point in

18     time and they have no interest in the property.

19               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I'm not sure we

20     have that change.

21               MR. KUGLER:  It's all there.

22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  We did have

23     you sign.  So that has come in since then, this was

24     dated January 28th.

25               MR. KUGLER:  That part has been accepted now
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 1     by the Department.

 2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That was January

 3     28th, and I didn't look at the records, but I assume

 4     they've been changed.  So our records should reflect

 5     that this is now in the name of John B. Kugler, and the

 6     case caption will be titled an amended so that you are

 7     the sole owner of this permit shown in our records.

 8               MR. KUGLER:  Along with my wife.

 9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Oh, okay.

10               MR. KUGLER:  But I don't remember how it got

11     deeded back to me.

12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  It doesn't show

13     that in the assignment.  So I don't know how that is

14     shown, but we'll probably just have to list it the way

15     it is in the permit for the Department.

16               MR. KUGLER:  That may be in my name alone.  I

17     don't recall.  Since then I've gotten the original.

18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I suspect it is.

19               MR. KUGLER:  I've got "John B. or" on the

20     original.

21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  We don't normally

22     have -- well, the notice of prehearing conference shows

23     it in Kugler's name, in John's name.

24               MR. KUGLER:  And/or Diane K., at my request.

25     I put it that way, what I faxed in, because I excluded
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 1     it in my own typing on my request for reconsideration

 2     that Northwest had no interest.  And I just raised it as

 3     an exception (inaudible).

 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  I have this

 5     request from you.  Let's see, reconsider its finding,

 6     should we go down this path I've been anticipating.

 7     Just that we normally issue something that is, other

 8     than that we've changed.

 9               MR. PEPPERSACK:  No.  I think we should base

10     it completely on the assignment trail.  So the

11     assignment was just in John's name and that's as far as

12     it went.

13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  My guess is that

14     that is the way our records show because that is the way

15     the assignment is.  I was looking for something else

16     that might have changed that, and I don't see it here.

17               So anyway, that is probably something you may

18     want to address later, John, if --

19               MR. KUGLER:  I would -- you don't need to.

20     I'm making a note to myself in regard to that request of

21     time.

22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And it may require

23     that you assign the permit to you and your wife.

24               MR. KUGLER:  If I do that, I will get

25     Northwest to execute another transfer document.
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 1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I think Northwest

 2     has fully assigned the permit to you.

 3               MR. KUGLER:  Okay.

 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So I think at least

 5     we would recognize you as the sole owner of the permit

 6     now.  So I think it just --

 7               MR. KUGLER:  The only one that I would upset

 8     is my wife.  (Laughter.)

 9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And it probably may

10     or may not be community property.  I don't know.

11               MR. KUGLER:  It definitely is community

12     property.

13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I don't know what

14     the state of Washington is.

15               MR. KUGLER:  Exactly, Washington is a

16     community property state, one of the eight.

17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  All right.  So,

18     again, we are here.  The order was issued in November of

19     2007.  And in response to service of the order upon him,

20     or upon you, John, you requested reconsideration and a

21     hearing.  That request for hearing was granted.

22               We conducted the prehearing conference, but we

23     met with you and talked about the facts and some of the

24     background related to this.  And then I wrote a letter

25     to you that essentially confirmed our opinion that the
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 1     order would stand, and so we went forward with the

 2     hearing, and that is why we are here today.

 3               MR. KUGLER:  I understand, yes.

 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And before we began

 5     the recording, we discussed the way in which we would

 6     proceed.  Again, this is not necessarily a contested

 7     case hearing because we don't have two parties.  The

 8     Department has issued a decision.  This is an

 9     opportunity for you, John, to present evidence for the

10     Department to consider in looking at everything again.

11     And then the Department will issue ultimately a decision

12     based on the record that is provided today.

13               And I do want to mention for the record that

14     Mr. Kugler has received copies of all the documents that

15     are contained in the file.  And I have reviewed those

16     documents and will consider the documents that are

17     contained therein in ultimately writing a preliminary

18     order for this matter.

19               And I'm sure, John, you have some additional

20     documents that you want to offer today.

21               MR. KUGLER:  I did not bring any documents.

22     The order required that I provide them to you in

23     advance, so I have not brought any documents.  I would

24     like to testify in the narrative, if I may.

25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That is
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 1     permitted, and I would be willing to allow you to offer

 2     something if you have it.  So I don't see a procedural

 3     problem with that at this point.

 4               I want to acknowledge today that Jeff

 5     Peppersack is assisting me today in this hearing.  And I

 6     also want to call attention to some documents that may

 7     not be here but are referred to in the Order Continuing

 8     the Indefinite Stay in Development Period.

 9               There are a couple of documents that I think

10     are important.  Our orders issued by the Department that

11     are referred to as "moratorium orders" that were issued

12     to all water right holders.  I have at least two

13     applicants that are -- there are two applicants whose

14     filings are pending, and those are referred to.  There

15     is a May 15, 1992 order and, again, an April 30, 1993

16     order that was issued.

17               So anyway, with that background, John, I don't

18     have anything else to add as a preliminary matter.  Do

19     you have anything you want to say before you have an

20     opportunity to testify?

21               MR. KUGLER:  No, sir.

22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, if you would

23     stand please, John, and raise your right-hand.

24   

25     ///
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 1                           JOHN B. KUGLER,

 2     first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said

 3     cause, testified as follows:

 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you.  Please

 5     be seated.

 6               As we discussed before, you may narrate your

 7     testimony and we'll see where we go from there.

 8               MR. KUGLER:  Thank you, Mr. Spackman.

 9               This particular property came to me as a part

10     of a particular problem in the development of doing an

11     estate for a person because it was owned prior to my

12     acquisition by about 13 different heirs, and the farmer

13     who had been farming the particular property did not

14     want to buy it at its appraised value.

15               And so when one or two of the heirs insisted

16     that they would like to get their value out of it

17     percentage-wise, I spoke with the majority heir that was

18     involved, one of them had over a third interest of it,

19     and advised her that if she wanted to sell at any

20     particular time -- but I felt it ought to always go for

21     at least the appraised value and I would buy the odd

22     share so that she didn't have a particular problem in

23     covering on it.  She could acquire it from me if she

24     wished.  And that was done and that is what started it.

25               And a couple years -- within that particular
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 1     first couple of years, in the early '80s -- actually,

 2     no, it was late '70s, she decided that she wanted to

 3     sell hers as well.  And at that point in time I acquired

 4     all of the property and took out a loan from Farm Credit

 5     Services for the purchase price that I needed to come up

 6     with to acquire the land.

 7               That farm was being farmed at the time the

 8     heir died by one farmer.  And when she decided to sell,

 9     he decided he no longer wanted to farm the land.  And I

10     found another farmer who would rent the property and

11     produce a little bit of funds, as far as income to the

12     property was concerned.  That was a man by the name of

13     Melvin Funk.

14               Melvin, in the early '80s, got into his own

15     particular financial problems, and in 1983 he told me he

16     could no longer and would no longer attempt to farm the

17     land, by reason of the fact that it was not very

18     productive.  He was getting very low yields.  Even when

19     he was farming it, he would be lucky to get 15 to 18

20     bushels of wheat off of the ground.  As a result, he was

21     taking a good share of that.

22               I decided that I would, because I had the loan

23     almost paid off and Farm Credit said they would give me

24     a loan for development, I put in for the purpose of

25     developing the water in 1984, and the application was
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 1     filed.

 2               At that same time when I was looking for a

 3     well driller, I found a driller, a young man who had

 4     been drilling, working for somebody else for quite a

 5     while.  And he indicated that he would go ahead and

 6     drill for me if I would buy the drilling rig, and he

 7     would pay me for any money back, but if I would pay him

 8     a particular rate for his time involved in the drilling.

 9               I bought a drill rig that was found and

10     located for $12,000.  And then we discovered that the

11     bits that came with it were insufficient, so I went out

12     and purchased a little larger bit, drill bit as

13     required, so we would have a 16-inch hole, and that cost

14     me an additional $1,600, and then I had some

15     miscellaneous expenses.  So I was into that at about

16     13.5.

17               And at that point in time, in 1984, I didn't

18     have to have a drilling permit, nor did he.  But the

19     young man then decided that he wanted to do something

20     else and was not interested in drilling.  I then found

21     another individual who was an established well driller

22     who said he would drill it and take it over if I would

23     give him the drill at the end of the period when he

24     finished.  I indicated to him that I would do so.

25              However, in 1987, 1988, he never got around to
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 1     doing it.  And, of course, in 1987 one was then required

 2     to get a drilling permit before one could proceed with

 3     that stage of the development.

 4               As a result of him not getting it done, I put

 5     the land into CRP in 1986, because I was getting no

 6     yield and nothing from the ground, and it was developing

 7     into some weed problems out there that was a concern to

 8     both me and to Power County weed control people.

 9               So I put it in there and took care of the

10     weeds and put it into the CRP program.  In the meantime,

11     I discovered that that particular well driller had not

12     only not gone forward with what he indicated to do, but

13     he had actually stolen the well drilling machine and

14     sold it.  So he was unable to even go forward with it.

15               I found another driller in 1990 who indicated

16     that he would go ahead, contacted the power company to

17     see about them running a line out to that particular

18     farm area, which is located in the western part of Power

19     County and close to the lava rocks, and he was now going

20     to begin.

21               And Idaho Power Company told me that at that

22     point in time they required a two- or three-year

23     planning stage before they could even consider extending

24     it.  So when I talked with the well driller about that,

25     he withdrew his willingness to go forward.
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 1               This continued through this particular period.

 2     And, of course, I did receive the order indicating in

 3     1992, I believe it was, I think it was the April 30 --

 4     May 15, '92, or that one, about needing the well

 5     drilling permit in going forward and was advised at that

 6     time about its expiration in 1997, as far as some of

 7     that was concerned.

 8               Anyway, it continued in the CRP program

 9     through that period of time.  And when I got a notice

10     about trying to put in the proof of completion and

11     development, I was unable to do so because I couldn't

12     get a well drilled and I couldn't put any water on the

13     land because of the CRP.  The ground remained again and

14     was put into CRP in 19 -- actually in 1996.  The

15     Department of Agriculture extended it for one year on

16     their own and then sought new applications in 1997,

17     which they extended then for a ten-year period expiring

18     in 2007.

19               At one point during that period of time I

20     filed my own application for extension of time for

21     completion of work and asked that it be extended through

22     2006, because that was my recollection of when the

23     current contract had been excluded, and then determined

24     afterwards that it came out to 2007.

25               But as I recall, the Department only granted
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 1     me to 2004.  And that particular determination, when I

 2     put in for that permit, I didn't go through the

 3     Department of Water Resources, because when I had given

 4     them the financing agreement to begin with, it was only

 5     going to go for five years, which then it's supposed to

 6     be renewed, and I had never renewed it with them.

 7               Of course, even after that, in 1994, I never

 8     did receive the order direct from -- the first one on

 9     February 4 from the Department, but Farm Credit sent it

10     to me and that is when I put in an application as to

11     that period of time.

12               But the farm has been in CRP continuously.

13     Power County wanted it in there for a couple of reasons

14     that I indicated early to begin with, until 2007.  And

15     before it got through to 2007, and early 2007, they

16     extended it for two more years, through 2009.

17               As of this date that extension order which

18     existed, will not be reconsidered.  It didn't require

19     anything by me to get that through to 2007 except to pay

20     them a small fee for a redetermination of acreage, which

21     had some new aerial photos.  But they wanted to do that

22     through that period of time, and I think that had to do

23     with something with county allotments.

24               But at the present time the county allotment

25     is going to be reduced, I gather, and they will not
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 1     renew it.  So come October of 2007 -- or 2009, this

 2     year, I will then be able to alleviate the problem with

 3     being able to consider the development and complete

 4     development of the acreage as I now require.

 5               The order that was issued, of course, in

 6     granting the extension through 2007, in effect,

 7     precludes me from drilling.  And obviously I cannot put

 8     water on, although I have been given oral permission by

 9     the County Department of Agriculture representative to

10     put a well in at any time so that I can start to

11     develop.

12               I will not be able to put any water in, as

13     indicated, until after October 1 of 2007.  But at that

14     time I did find the prohibition against putting a well

15     on the premises, as long as I don't put extensions and

16     lines in for watering has been alleviated.

17               Obviously when the other alleviation comes,

18     then my only particular problem that I have, as far as

19     being able to supply the completion of works, which the

20     Department has been extending for quite some time, will

21     be the problem of getting the permission of drilling a

22     well, which did not exist at the time the permit was

23     granted, but does now I guess exist, because I've been

24     told recently, since December 17 -- or December 17th

25     of -- or 21st, I guess, of this 2008, sometime during
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 1     2008, that if I requested a well drilling permit, it

 2     would not be issued.  I presumed that that is based on

 3     what I gather is being called the "ESPA moratorium."

 4               I believe with respect to that, that that ESPA

 5     moratorium came into effect after the granting of this

 6     permit, wherein I was permitted to drill a well without

 7     acquiring a well drilling permit.  I also believe that

 8     the moratorium basically operated as an interference

 9     with an existing right, which I think was precluded by

10     Section 42-1374(F) of the Idaho Code.

11               If I gather from the findings, it has been

12     determined by the Department that the consumption that I

13     requested for is insignificant.

14               MR. PEPPERSACK:  John, what is the code

15     section again that you referred to?

16               MR. KUGLER:  42-1374(F).  That was a basic one

17     in the original powers of the Department.  I don't have

18     access to and could not get access to any supplements or

19     anything else as far as that code section is concerned.

20     So I don't know --

21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I have a code book

22     here and I don't find that.  I don't find a section that

23     is numbered that high.

24               MR. KUGLER:  Well, that was in on old book of

25     mine, and I suspect it was deleted when they adopted the
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 1     new code section.  As I said, I didn't have access to

 2     the Idaho Code.

 3               I would have to go back and -- whenever the

 4     new section was involved.  I do understand from -- I

 5     talked with somebody else that had been involved with

 6     waters that there was another statute adopted at one

 7     time that had to do with preservation of rights.  And I

 8     don't know what that code section is because of my lack

 9     of being able to access any authority on it.

10               It had to do with, as I understand, including

11     probably some sort of non-consumptive use, CRP type,

12     which is what I was precluded from during this period of

13     time, and other things in that regard, and I'm not sure

14     what they are.

15               I had planned to try to get to Pocatello prior

16     to this hearing, and some other developments in my own

17     personal situation precluded that between the time the

18     order came out and this particular setting, so I was not

19     able to do that, as I said.

20               My computer just -- my wife's computer will

21     not access whatever it takes to get into the law library

22     and the Tacoma (inaudible.)  Pierce County library

23     doesn't have anything --

24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There are two, I

25     think, references to set-aside programs in the code, and
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 1     one of those is related to whether the right can be

 2     forfeited while it's in a set-aside program.  And the

 3     code says that a water right cannot be forfeited.  Of

 4     course, this is a permit, so I don't think that

 5     forfeiture is a legal theory that would apply to a

 6     permit.

 7               The other provision of law is that extensions

 8     of time can be granted during the tenancy of that

 9     enrollment in a federal set-aside program, so that the

10     permit is somehow not lost because of failure of ability

11     to submit the proof of beneficial use during the

12     development period.

13               MR. KUGLER:  Well, I appreciate that

14     explanation, and I was suspecting that probably there

15     was something like that, that is why I wanted to do the

16     research and I was unable to do so.  I do think,

17     however, that the permit itself, as it existed at the

18     time when the drilling permit was not considered or

19     whatever and which continues under its provisions, does

20     constitute a water right of a nature.

21               Sure, it's not been developed, true, but at

22     the same time I was not in a legal position.  I was

23     precluded from doing that which was (inaudible) to a

24     complete development.  And to me that is sort of an

25     inconsistency, that is, when I'm going ahead with
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 1     inconsistency, as far as saying, Hey, you have got to

 2     develop this, when I can't get a well permit, a drilling

 3     permit to proceed by reason of the adoption of the

 4     moratorium code.

 5               And that inconsistency to me is what I have

 6     been trying to do in the meantime.  I have always wanted

 7     to develop it, but at the same time I couldn't let the

 8     land just sit there and go to weeds.  I had to do

 9     something about it.  And putting it into grasses was a

10     benefit to everyone.  It produces a little bit of

11     revenue for me and at the same time produced a benefit

12     to the general public, as far as providing some very

13     good area for grouse and other wildlife.

14               Personally, actually in looking at the grass

15     that was given to me -- and I know we talked about this

16     at the informal conference at one time as to whether

17     this particular ground actually lies within that Blue

18     Lakes groundwater curtailment area or not.  And

19     physically I can't tell from the map because I know how

20     far that particular boundary is marked on the map, and

21     we discussed the fact that it's not a good marking

22     described.

23               I don't know what the description is when it

24     was described because I haven't acquired actually any

25     reading on how it reads either, as far as a section line
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 1     or whatever it is exists at that particular point.

 2               I know that my land is located in the

 3     southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 31

 4     in Township 6 (inaudible) Range 31 east, and that is it.

 5     But regardless, it's close, there is no question about

 6     it.

 7               But I still think that -- and that is why I'm

 8     talking about mitigation and continues conditions,

 9     because the one condition that needs to be alleviated in

10     this particular order, now that the ownership question

11     has been started, is what is required to be able to

12     allow me to hire a driller so that I can put the land

13     into cultivation as was contemplated at the time and

14     would have been done had I not had the one well driller

15     quit on me after I had acquired the (inaudible) to

16     proceed, and then the other guy commit a fraud against

17     me with respect to it before getting that done.  And so

18     that is all that I could do in the meantime, and that I

19     guess is exactly where I am.

20               I believe that when this land goes back, I

21     don't know whether there is a farmer who is interested

22     in trying to put this very small tract of land into dry

23     farm again in the lava rocks where it exists, because

24     there are some good piles of rock in there that are

25     within a few inches of the surface.  It's very marginal

0020

 1     land, but it was borderline marginal.  And so when the

 2     County had to pick it out, this is one they took off of

 3     the program.

 4               At the same time as I financed, the big

 5     finance on what was in existence at the time that I

 6     signed the financing with Northwest Credit, was the

 7     acquisition of another farm that I have, which was

 8     basically my retirement from what little monies I had.

 9               I also came out of a litigation, a litigation

10     which I was not involved, but when some parties got a

11     judgment on a farm that is located on the Power County

12     and Oneida County line or just north of it, all within

13     Power County, and that was in existence.

14               And in order to acquire I had to put this

15     particular farm up with my water right on it to

16     sufficiently finance the acquisition of that land.  And

17     I did have a farmer engaged in partnership on it, and he

18     ran into his financial problems and had to back out and

19     I had to buy him out of that one as well.

20               So in the meantime I finally paid off Farm

21     Credit, as I said, 2003 or maybe 2004, but I kind of

22     paid off on both farms at that point in time.  And I'm

23     now looking at what I can do to find something to do

24     with this particular farm there, this small farm in

25     Pleasant Valley.
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 1               And I think that hopefully these type of

 2     things do fall within the provisions of what the

 3     Department operates under, as far as alleviating the

 4     conditions of the stay, which will be concluded, as I

 5     said, as of October 1, 2007.

 6               That is why when I put in the request

 7     originally, I thought I could get it in within one year,

 8     knowing that I still have to get an extension of power

 9     to reach that particular ground.  It's about a quarter

10     of a mile of extension of line.  Not knowing what Idaho

11     Power's current situation is, I thought maybe I should

12     figure on a three-year plan.

13               The rules still provide, of course, that you

14     try to get started within what first year, and that is

15     what I would like to do, even if it took a little longer

16     to get the power toward the actual usage on the farm

17     itself.  That is where I am.

18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.

19               MR. KUGLER:  If there are any questions, I am

20     certainly glad to answer them, as far as some of the

21     specifics, or if you need further documentation.  I

22     agree with you that, why on a couple of times Mr. Hill

23     proceeded with where he did and then didn't.

24     (Inaudible) the other, I don't know.

25               But they would change their offices from
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 1     Blackfoot, where I normally was doing things, to Idaho

 2     Falls, and I didn't get to see him very often during

 3     that time, but he didn't come down to see me either

 4     because I was making my payments.

 5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  John, there is some

 6     questions that, I guess, I have, and they have to do

 7     more with the basis for your challenge and the legal

 8     grounds that you may argue are the basis for the

 9     Department allowing you to go forward.

10               So I guess I would like to go back through the

11     information that we have, and try to pinpoint and

12     identify the times and where you think the Department

13     has done something that it's either not authorized to do

14     or that at some juncture the Department should let go of

15     where we are at.

16               So, as I see this record, the permit was

17     issued to you in July -- on July 27, 1990.

18               MR. KUGLER:  Yes, even though I had put the

19     permit in in 1984, during that period of time -- well,

20     it didn't appear here -- there was some communications

21     about the first well driller.  He didn't get his work

22     done when that got off, that was communicated to the

23     Department, and there was no letter in here reflecting

24     that, even a notation of the conversation that I had

25     with the Department, they were made aware of it.  And I
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 1     was told -- and I think that is contained in a

 2     application that I was told not to be concerned with

 3     because they weren't doing any processing by reason of

 4     the water hearings.  And at that particular time they

 5     were not doing any processing of permits to actually go

 6     ahead and issue them in '84, '85.

 7                But, of course, as I said at that time had I

 8     not had my problems in that aspect, I would have them

 9     all and we wouldn't be here where we are today.  That is

10     what I'm talking about mitigation in that particular

11     regard.

12               I do think that I had in 1990 when I was

13     right, the right to get a well permit.  I think that was

14     an existing right at that time.  But that existing right

15     I think was then taken away from me when I caught

16     mention of the statutes.  That is the way I feel about

17     how that interpetation should be.

18               And when the limitation came in and it said:

19     Fine, this is going to expire in 1997, I didn't think

20     about it because 1997 was when my contract was up on the

21     CRP contract.  And so at that time I thought:  Fine, I

22     can just go ahead.  And then at one point thereafter I

23     didn't get ahold of the orders that Mr. Hill proceeded,

24     I wasn't involved, and that is why we had that mixup

25     about ownership that I didn't think was going to be
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 1     filed, was not aware of it until we got into these

 2     proceedings where we are today.  I guess basically that

 3     is about the best I can do at this point in time.

 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, we could go

 5     back and probably recreate a record of why the

 6     application filed in 1984 was not processed until 1990.

 7     And I suspect that that documentation probably would

 8     show that there were orders and restrictions that were

 9     put in place for the processing of the applications,

10     would fall within what was called trust water area, and

11     there was an ongoing lawsuit with Idaho Power and the

12     Swan Falls agreement that was signed.

13               MR. KUGLER:  I never had any notice of any of

14     those proceedings or any information to that regard.  I

15     went through my old file, because I did have the old

16     file with my old permit, and there was nothing in there

17     to that extent.

18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I don't find

19     any of that here, except I did find some correspondence

20     from Tim Luke in the, I think, early 1990s.

21               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  There was some

22     correspondence from him when he sent me a copy of the

23     '93 order or '92, as I remember it.  I would have to go

24     back and look.

25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There shouldn't be
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 1     -- this is '94, 1990, so --

 2               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.

 3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  During the Swan

 4     Falls litigation, Department approval may have been

 5     delayed.  The Department is presently reviewing your

 6     application.

 7               MR. KUGLER:  I do have that letter.

 8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And that is the

 9     first indication, at least looking at this, so I think

10     what I would want to do is start with the date the

11     permit was issued, because it was issued, it had a first

12     priority date of October 4, 1984, which would be the

13     date of filing.  And so that below, other than perhaps

14     now in retrospect looking back on it, if you had hurried

15     to develop -- I'm not sure you could have.  It probably

16     was held up by Swan Falls anyway.

17               So this was issued, and then following the

18     issuance of that the Department issued an order in 1994,

19     subsequently issued another order in 1995 that stayed

20     the development under this permit.

21               MR. KUGLER:  Correct.

22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Now, you contest

23     that particular order; is that correct?

24               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  I don't think -- because

25     that stay, in effect, says you have to have a well
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 1     drilling permit, which my permit did not require at the

 2     time -- well, it did have, but it says that my permit

 3     said I could go ahead and drill, in effect, at that time

 4     it was granted in '84.

 5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.

 6               MR. KUGLER:  But yes, I know they changed that

 7     and put the well drillers into a filing, not being able

 8     to do any work, but they adopted the well driller code

 9     in '87.  But I think that the effect of that -- and

10     that's, again, I honestly believe, I don't know from a

11     legal standpoint, not being involved in water rights or

12     anything during this whole entire period of time and not

13     having had any of the notices because of that very

14     complicated hearing, I know there were a lot other

15     people who did get notices from the Department, but I

16     didn't, so I didn't know where I stood as far as that

17     goes.

18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I do want to

19     refer you to Idaho Code Section 42-1805, and this is

20     subparagraph No. 7 of 42-1805.  And this is a code

21     section that is titled "Additional Duties" and describes

22     some of the duties that have been delegated by the

23     legislature to the director of the Department of Water

24     Resources.

25               It says:  "The director shall have the

0027

 1     following powers and duties in subparagraph 7."  It

 2     says:  "After notice to suspend the issuance where

 3     further action on permits or applications that is

 4     necessary to protect existing vested water rights or to

 5     ensure compliance with provision of Chapter 2, Title 42

 6     Idaho Code."

 7               So at least here in this code section it

 8     grants the director the authority to stop the

 9     development under permits that had been issued to

10     people.

11               MR. KUGLER:  When was that adopted, if I may

12     ask?

13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I would have

14     to go back through --

15               MR. KUGLER:  It should show at the bottom of

16     the page, I think.

17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Sure.  Yeah.  I

18     don't know -- I don't know how many amendments have been

19     produced.  There are several here.

20               Why don't I just show you.  You could look

21     through those annotations or the history right at the

22     bottom and there are several amendments.  So I don't

23     know whether that was added and when.  We could go back

24     through, I guess, the section once and it's possible.

25     We could get you a copy of that if you want, John.
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 1               MR. KUGLER:  That's all right.  I do intend to

 2     figure out somehow how I can get into it, but --

 3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Certainly the

 4     Supreme Court -- of course, you don't have a vehicle

 5     here with you today.

 6               MR. KUGLER:  No, I do not, or I would have

 7     gone over.  I have to get back right away.  Let's not

 8     take any more time with the hearing now and I'll just

 9     look at this after we are through, if I may.

10               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, that is fine.

11               MR. KUGLER:  If you have another question I

12     can --

13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.  I guess

14     beyond that then, the order was issued in 2005.  And

15     then you received a notice that proof was due, and we

16     issued an extension of time when you requested it.  And

17     by my reading, that extension extended the time for

18     proof being due to coincide with the 2005 order.  That

19     is the way I read this, because the 2005 order -- let me

20     look back.  I was looking in the wrong place.

21               By the way, this order actually quotes at the

22     time it was issued in 1995, Section 43-1805,

23     subparagraph 7.  So it apparently was in place at the

24     time this order was issued.

25               But this order said at the -- this is 1994,
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 1     I'm sorry.  I meant to look at the 1995 order.

 2               The order that I'm referring to is an April

 3     4th -- is dated April 4th, 1995.  And the last condition

 4     under the order portion of the document states:  "This

 5     order does not grant a stay in development beyond

 6     December 31st, 1997."  Now, that language could be

 7     interpreted a couple of ways.  One way I guess it could

 8     be interpreted is that the stay in development is -- or

 9     the stay is finished and that the period of time for

10     development starts to run again.

11               MR. KUGLER:  That is what I thought it meant,

12     because when it talked about well drilling expiring in

13     '97, in fact, I thought by 1997 I could put into it,

14     then I found out I couldn't.

15               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, the request

16     for extension of time we approved also said proof of

17     beneficial use needed to be submitted by December 31st,

18     1997.  Now, usually that setup, I guess, is a physical

19     impossibility because a stay was in place, and this is

20     the inconsistency, but we required the filing of proof

21     which couldn't be because there was a stay.

22               MR. KUGLER:  And still cannot.

23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And you had a CRP

24     contract (inaudible).

25               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.

0030

 1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So then there was a

 2     second request for an extension of time that you filed.

 3     And this actually was filed, I think it's signed by

 4     Richard Hill.

 5               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.  He filed one in

 6     December, and I filed a different one separately myself,

 7     and I can't remember when I got it filed.  I filed one

 8     on my own, and I didn't see a copy of that, as I recall,

 9     in the papers I received.  I filed one, paid a $50 fee

10     asking to go till 2006, and there is a letter in there

11     telling me it was approved for the end of 2004, and I

12     had requested to 2006.  And I didn't see that in that

13     particular file.  Maybe it's me, because there was so

14     much paper to go through trying to figure out in the

15     copying process what fit where.

16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  So what I

17     have at least, and I'll try to reconcile those dates,

18     but what I have is, I have an extension of time that was

19     approved until December 31st, 1997.  Then I have another

20     one that extended the time for development for another

21     five years, and this was based on the CRP enrollment,

22     until, December 1, 2002.  And then I have another one

23     that -- and you filed for this one, and it extended the

24     time for proof of beneficial use until December 1, 2007.

25               MR. KUGLER:  There is one other one that Mr.
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 1     Hill filed.

 2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, it was

 3     jointly filed.

 4               MR. KUGLER:  Okay.

 5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:   So there is a dual

 6     signature on this one.

 7               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah, I remember he contacted me

 8     at some point in time during that period of time, even

 9     though I didn't have much remitting on my contract

10     there.

11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But this extended

12     the date for submittal of proof until December 1, 2007.

13     At that point in time you filed another request for

14     extension of time, and that is what prompted the

15     December 6, 2007 order from those signed by Jeff.

16               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah.  I think there is a letter

17     in there that shows that when I was concerned about the

18     2007, which was the then end of my CRP contract.  I

19     originally had thought it was 2006 when I put in one

20     request.

21               But anyway, I stopped in in September of 2000

22     and was unable to get -- because the computers weren't

23     working that day that I was in there.  Talking with the

24     one lady, and then they sent me the information that

25     said:  Here this is what you need to do with the
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 1     extension request, which I filled out at that particular

 2     point in time, yes.

 3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So you are not

 4     contesting the issuance of these extensions of time.

 5               MR. KUGLER:  No, not at all.

 6               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  They are documents

 7     that extend the permit --

 8               MR. KUGLER:  Just how it affects me, and that

 9     is the inconsistency that I talked about between, Hey,

10     there is no way I could ever comply with that until I am

11     able to drill a well and put the water on it.

12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So are you

13     contesting the ability of the Department now to issue

14     another order continuing the indefinite stay in the

15     development period?

16               MR. KUGLER:  Yes, because at this particular

17     point in time I can alleviate it, and that precludes me

18     from being able to drill a well and convert it to what

19     it was originally intended.

20               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.  All right.

21     Well, I understand the arguments.  And I don't know that

22     we need to go over anything else.  Is there anything

23     that else that you want to discuss with us?

24               MR. KUGLER:  No.  That concludes what I have

25     and what I know at this particular point in time.  I do
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 1     appreciate the chance to let me look at your code

 2     sections here for a few minutes.

 3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.

 4               Jeff, do you have anything you want to ask at

 5     this point?

 6               MR. PEPPERSACK:  No.

 7               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  All right.

 8     Thank you.

 9               MR. KUGLER:  I just hope I've come up with the

10     showing that conditions will be alleviated as is set

11     forth, as against what is in -- and do that which I have

12     not been able to do.  And that this insignificant

13     consumption aspect is material to you and that you are

14     able to find something from a mitigation standpoint as a

15     result of my particular problems in this particular

16     relevant time.

17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  And the

18     current period of CRP enrollment expires when?

19               MR. KUGLER:  September 30th, 2009.

20               On October 1 I can start to put water in, and

21     I have been given permission to drill a well on it.

22     That is only oral, I don't have it in writing, from the

23     Department with the Power County agent.

24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  You say by the

25     Department, you are talking about someone from Power
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 1     County.

 2               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  The Department of

 3     Agriculture that deals with my CRP contract.

 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.

 5               MR. KUGLER:  He has authorized me, to say you

 6     can put a well on it, but you cannot develop, further

 7     development at this time.

 8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So he says you can

 9     put a well on when?

10               MR. KUGLER:  Now.  I can put one on tomorrow.

11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That doesn't

12     violate the terms of the CRP.

13               MR. KUGLER:  He says it will not violate the

14     terms in this last year of concern.  He said, You can't

15     put water on it because that would be a violation.

16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Very good.

17     Thanks for your efforts and your traveling over, John,

18     nice to see you again.

19               MR. KUGLER:  Tell Debby thank you for

20     arranging to have that proceeding right here.  I didn't

21     even know it existed, and to accommodate me as far as

22     time so I can get down and back in a day.

23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Sure.  Very good.

24     Okay.  We'll close the record.  Thanks.

25               (End of audio tape.)
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1 (Start of audio tape.) 1 itinmy own typing on my reguest for reconsideration
2 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. We are 2 that Northwest had no interest. And | just raised it as
3 recording. Thisisthetime and place set for ahearing 3 anexception (inaudible).
4 regarding an order titled, "Order Continuing the 4 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. | havethis
5 Indefinite Stay in Development Period," signed by the 5 request fromyou. Let's see, reconsider itsfinding,
6 Department in December 2007, signed by Jeff Peppersack, 6 should we go down this path I've been anticipating.
7 Bureau Chief Water Allocation Bureau. And it'sin the 7 Just that we normally issue something that is, other
8 matter of permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B. 8 than that we've changed.
9 Kugler, and at thetime | think it listed Northwest Farm 9 MR. PEPPERSACK: No. | think we should base
10 Credit Servicesaswsdll. 10 it completely on the assignment trail. So the
11 It seems to me that Northwest Farm Credit 11 assignment was just in John's name and that's asfar as
12  Servicesisno longer involved; or isthat correct, Mr. 12 it went.
13 Kugler? 13 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: My guessisthat
14 MR. KUGLER: That iscorrect. They should 14 that isthe way our records show because that is the way
15 havefiled thefact that | paid the mortgage off back in 15 theassignmentis. | waslooking for something else
16 2003, but they didn't do that, or 2004. But they have 16 that might have changed that, and | don't seeit here.
17 filedit now, soit'sin my name alone at this point in 17 So anyway, that is probably something you may
18 time and they have no interest in the property. 18 want to address later, John, if --
19 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: I'm not surewe 19 MR. KUGLER: | would -- you don't need to.
20 havethat change. 20 I'm making a note to myself in regard to that request of
21 MR. KUGLER: It'sal there. 21 time.
22 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Wedid have |22 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And it may require
23 yousign. So that has comein since then, thiswas 23  that you assign the permit to you and your wife.
24 dated January 28th. 24 MR. KUGLER: If | dothat, | will get
25 MR. KUGLER: That part has been accepted now 25 Northwest to execute another transfer document.
Page 3 Page 5
1 by the Department. 1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | think Northwest
2 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: That was January 2 hasfully assigned the permit to you.
3 28th, and | didn't look at the records, but | assume 3 MR. KUGLER: Okay.
4 they've been changed. So our records should reflect 4 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: So | think at least
5 that thisis now in the name of John B. Kugler, and the 5 wewould recognize you as the sole owner of the permit
6 case caption will betitled an amended so that you are 6 now. Sol thinkitjust --
7 the sole owner of this permit shown in our records. 7 MR. KUGLER: Theonly onethat | would upset
8 MR. KUGLER: Along with my wife. 8 ismy wife. (Laughter.)
9 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Oh, okay. 9 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And it probably may
10 MR. KUGLER: But | don't remember how it got 10 or may not be community property. | don't know.
11  deeded back to me. 11 MR. KUGLER: It definitely is community
12 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: [t doesn't show 12 property.
13 thatintheassignment. So | don't know how that is 13 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | don't know what
14 shown, but we'll probably just have to list it the way 14  the state of Washingtoniis.
15 itisinthe permit for the Department. 15 MR. KUGLER: Exactly, Washingtonisa
16 MR. KUGLER: That may bein my name alone. | 16 community property state, one of the eight.
17 don'trecall. Sincethen |'ve gotten the original. 17 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: All right. So,
18 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | suspect itis. 18 again, we are here. The order was issued in November of
19 MR. KUGLER: I've got "John B. or" on the 19 2007. And in response to service of the order upon him,
20 original. 20 or upon you, John, you requested reconsideration and a
21 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Wedon't normally |21 hearing. That request for hearing was granted.
22 have-- well, the notice of prehearing conference shows 22 We conducted the prehearing conference, but we
23 itinKugler's name, in John's name. 23 met with you and talked about the facts and some of the
24 MR. KUGLER: And/or Diane K., at my request. 24 background related to this. And then | wrote aletter
25 | put it that way, what | faxed in, because | excluded 25 toyou that essentially confirmed our opinion that the
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1 order would stand, and so we went forward with the 1 JOHN B. KUGLER,

2 hearing, and that iswhy we are here today. 2 first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said

3 MR. KUGLER: | understand, yes. 3 cause testified asfollows:

4 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And beforewebegan | 4 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Thank you. Please

5 therecording, we discussed the way in which we would 5 be seated.

6 proceed. Again, thisis not necessarily a contested 6 Aswe discussed before, you may narrate your

7  case hearing because we don't have two parties. The 7 testimony and we'll see where we go from there.

8 Department hasissued adecision. Thisisan 8 MR. KUGLER: Thank you, Mr. Spackman.

9 opportunity for you, John, to present evidence for the 9 This particular property came to me as a part
10 Department to consider in looking at everything again. 10 of aparticular problem in the development of doing an
11  And then the Department will issue ultimately a decision 11 estatefor a person because it was owned prior to my
12 based on the record that is provided today. 12 acquisition by about 13 different heirs, and the farmer
13 And | do want to mention for the record that 13 who had been farming the particular property did not
14  Mr. Kugler has received copies of all the documents that 14 want to buy it at its appraised value.

15 arecontained inthefile. And | have reviewed those 15 And so when one or two of the heirs insisted
16  documentsand will consider the documents that are 16 that they would like to get their value out of it
17 contained therein in ultimately writing a preliminary 17 percentage-wise, | spoke with the mgjority heir that was
18 order for this matter. 18 involved, one of them had over athird interest of it,
19 And I'm sure, John, you have some additional 19 and advised her that if she wanted to sell at any
20 documents that you want to offer today. 20 particular time-- but | felt it ought to always go for
21 MR. KUGLER: 1 did not bring any documents. 21 @t least the appraised value and | would buy the odd
22 Theorder required that | provide them to you in 22 share so that she didn't have a particular problem in
23 advance, so | have not brought any documents. | would 23 coveringonit. Shecould acquireit from meif she
24 liketotestify in the narrative, if | may. 24 wished. And that was done and that iswhat started it.
25 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Thatis 25 And acouple years -- within that particular
Page 7 Page 9

1 permitted, and | would be willing to allow you to offer 1 first couple of years, in the early '80s -- actually,

2 something if you haveit. Sol don't see a procedural 2 no, it waslate '70s, she decided that she wanted to

3 problem with that at this point. 3 sdl hersaswell. And at that point in time | acquired

4 | want to acknowledge today that Jeff 4 al of the property and took out aloan from Farm Credit

5 Peppersack is assisting me today in this hearing. And | 5 Services for the purchase price that | needed to come up

6 asowant to call attention to some documents that may 6 withto acquiretheland.

7 not be here but are referred to in the Order Continuing 7 That farm was being farmed at the time the

8 theIndefinite Stay in Development Period. 8 heir died by one farmer. And when she decided to sell,

9 There are a couple of documents that | think 9 hedecided he no longer wanted to farm the land. And |
10 areimportant. Our ordersissued by the Department that 10 found another farmer who would rent the property and
11  arereferred to as "moratorium orders’ that were issued 11 produce alittle bit of funds, asfar asincometo the
12 toall water right holders. | have at least two 12 property was concerned. That was a man by the name of
13 applicantsthat are -- there are two applicants whose 13 Melvin Funk.

14 filings are pending, and those are referred to. There 14 Melvin, in the early '80s, got into his own

15 isaMay 15, 1992 order and, again, an April 30, 1993 15 particular financial problems, and in 1983 he told me he
16  order that was issued. 16  could no longer and would no longer attempt to farm the
17 So anyway, with that background, John, | don't 17 land, by reason of the fact that it was not very

18 have anything €lse to add as a preliminary matter. Do 18 productive. He was getting very low yields. Even when
19 you have anything you want to say before you have an 19 hewasfarming it, he would be lucky to get 15to 18

20 opportunity to testify? 20 bushels of wheat off of the ground. Asaresult, he was
21 MR. KUGLER: No, sir. 21 taking agood share of that.

22 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, if youwould |22 | decided that | would, because | had the loan

23 stand please, John, and raise your right-hand. 23 amost paid off and Farm Credit said they would give me
24 24 aloan for development, | put in for the purpose of

2 25 developing the water in 1984, and the application was
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1 filed. 1 This continued through this particular period.
2 At that same time when | was looking for a 2 And, of course, | did receive the order indicating in
3 well driller, | found adriller, ayoung man who had 3 1992, | believeit was, | think it was the April 30 --
4 been drilling, working for somebody else for quite a 4 May 15, '92, or that one, about needing the well
5 while. And heindicated that he would go ahead and 5 drilling permit in going forward and was advised at that
6 drill for meif | would buy the drilling rig, and he 6 timeabout its expiration in 1997, asfar as some of
7 would pay me for any money back, but if | would pay him | 7 that was concerned.
8 aparticular rate for histimeinvolved in the drilling. 8 Anyway, it continued in the CRP program
9 | bought adrill rig that was found and 9 through that period of time. And when | got anotice
10 located for $12,000. And then we discovered that the 10 about trying to put in the proof of completion and
11 bitsthat came with it were insufficient, so | went out 11 development, | was unableto do so because | couldn't
12 and purchased alittle larger bit, drill bit as 12 getawel drilled and | couldn't put any water on the
13 required, so we would have a 16-inch hole, and that cost 13 land because of the CRP. The ground remained again and
14 mean additional $1,600, and then | had some 14 wasputinto CRPin 19 -- actually in 1996. The
15 miscellaneous expenses. So | was into that at about 15 Department of Agriculture extended it for one year on
16 135. 16 their own and then sought new applicationsin 1997,
17 And at that point intime, in 1984, | didn't 17 which they extended then for aten-year period expiring
18 haveto have adrilling permit, nor did he. But the 18 in2007.
19 young man then decided that he wanted to do something 19 At one point during that period of time|
20 elseand was not interested in drilling. | then found 20 filed my own application for extension of time for
21 another individual who was an established well driller 21 completion of work and asked that it be extended through
22 who said he would drill it and take it over if | would 22 2006, because that was my recollection of when the
23 give him thedrill at the end of the period when he 23 current contract had been excluded, and then determined
24 finished. | indicated to him that | would do so. 24  afterwardsthat it came out to 2007.
25 However, in 1987, 1988, he never got around to 25 But as| recall, the Department only granted
Page 11 Page 13
1 doingit. And, of course, in 1987 one was then required 1 meto 2004. And that particular determination, when |
2 togetadrilling permit before one could proceed with 2 putinfor that permit, | didn't go through the
3 that stage of the development. 3 Department of Water Resources, because when | had given
4 Asaresult of him not getting it done, | put 4 them the financing agreement to begin with, it was only
5 thelandinto CRPin 1986, because | was getting no 5 going to go for five years, which then it's supposed to
6 Yyield and nothing from the ground, and it was developing 6 berenewed, and | had never renewed it with them.
7 into some weed problems out there that was a concern to 7 Of course, even after that, in 1994, | never
8 both me and to Power County weed control people. 8 did receive the order direct from -- the first one on
9 So | put it in there and took care of the 9 February 4 from the Department, but Farm Credit sent it
10 weeds and put it into the CRP program. Inthe meantime, |10 tomeand that iswhen | put in an application asto
11 | discovered that that particular well driller had not 11 that period of time.
12 only not gone forward with what he indicated to do, but 12 But the farm has been in CRP continuously.
13 hehad actually stolen the well drilling machine and 13 Power County wanted it in there for a couple of reasons
14 soldit. So hewas unable to even go forward with it. 14 that | indicated early to begin with, until 2007. And
15 | found another driller in 1990 who indicated 15 beforeit got through to 2007, and early 2007, they
16 that he would go ahead, contacted the power company to |16  extended it for two more years, through 2009.
17  seeabout them running aline out to that particular 17 As of this date that extension order which
18 farm area, which islocated in the western part of Power 18  existed, will not be reconsidered. It didn't require
19 County and close to the lavarocks, and hewas now going |19 anything by me to get that through to 2007 except to pay
20 to begin. 20 them asmall feefor aredetermination of acreage, which
21 And Idaho Power Company told me that at that 21  had some new aeria photos. But they wanted to do that
22 point in time they required a two- or three-year 22 through that period of time, and | think that had to do
23 planning stage before they could even consider extending |23  with something with county allotments.
24 it. Sowhen | talked with the well driller about that, 24 But at the present time the county alotment
25 hewithdrew hiswillingness to go forward. 25 isgoing to be reduced, | gather, and they will not
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1 renew it. So come October of 2007 -- or 2009, this 1 new code section. Asl said, | didn't have accessto
2 year, | will then be able to alleviate the problem with 2 theldaho Code.
3 being able to consider the development and complete 3 I would have to go back and -- whenever the
4 development of the acreage as | now require. 4 new section wasinvolved. | do understand from -- |
5 The order that was issued, of course, in 5 talked with somebody else that had been involved with
6 granting the extension through 2007, in effect, 6 waters that there was another statute adopted at one
7 precludes me from drilling. And obviously | cannot put 7 timethat had to do with preservation of rights. And |
8 water on, although | have been given oral permissionby | 8 don't know what that code section is because of my lack
9 the County Department of Agriculture representative to 9 of being able to access any authority onit.
10 put awell inat any time so that | can start to 10 It had to do with, as | understand, including
11 develop. 11  probably some sort of non-consumptive use, CRP type,
12 I will not be able to put any water in, as 12 whichiswhat | was precluded from during this period of
13 indicated, until after October 1 of 2007. But at that 13 time, and other thingsin that regard, and I'm not sure
14 timel did find the prohibition against putting a well 14 what they are.
15 onthe premises, aslong as| don't put extensions and 15 | had planned to try to get to Pocatello prior
16 linesin for watering has been alleviated. 16  to this hearing, and some other developmentsin my own
17 Obviously when the other alleviation comes, 17 persona situation precluded that between the time the
18 then my only particular problem that | have, asfar as 18 order came out and this particular setting, so | was not
19 being able to supply the completion of works, whichthe |19 abletodothat, asl said.
20 Department has been extending for quite sometime, will |20 My computer just -- my wife's computer will
21 bethe problem of getting the permission of drilling a 21 not access whatever it takes to get into the law library
22 wadll, which did not exist at the time the permit was 22 andthe Tacoma (inaudible.) Pierce County library
23 granted, but does now | guess exist, because |'ve been 23 doesn't have anything --
24 told recently, since December 17 -- or December 17th 24 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: There are two, |
25 of -- or 21st, | guess, of this 2008, sometime during 25 think, references to set-aside programs in the code, and
Page 15 Page 17
1 2008, that if | requested awell drilling permit, it 1 oneof thoseisrelated to whether the right can be
2 would not be issued. | presumed that that is based on 2 forfeited whileit'sin a set-aside program. And the
3 what | gather isbeing called the "ESPA moratorium.” 3 code saysthat awater right cannot be forfeited. Of
4 | believe with respect to that, that that ESPA 4 course, thisisapermit, so | don't think that
5 moratorium cameinto effect after the granting of this 5 forfeitureisalegal theory that would apply to a
6 permit, wherein | was permitted to drill awell without 6 permit.
7 acquiring awell drilling permit. | also believe that 7 The other provision of law isthat extensions
8  the moratorium basically operated as an interference 8 of time can be granted during the tenancy of that
9 with an existing right, which | think was precluded by 9 enrollment in afederal set-aside program, so that the
10 Section 42-1374(F) of the Idaho Code. 10  permit is somehow not lost because of failure of ability
1 If | gather from the findings, it has been 11  to submit the proof of beneficial use during the
12  determined by the Department that the consumption that | 12 development period.
13 requested for isinsignificant. 13 MR. KUGLER: WEéll, | appreciate that
14 MR. PEPPERSACK: John, what isthe code 14  explanation, and | was suspecting that probably there
15 section again that you referred to? 15 was something like that, that is why | wanted to do the
16 MR. KUGLER: 42-1374(F). That was abasic one 16 research and | was unableto do so. | do think,
17 intheoriginal powers of the Department. | don't have 17 however, that the permit itself, asit existed at the
18 accessto and could not get access to any supplements or 18 timewhen the drilling permit was not considered or
19 anything else asfar as that code section is concerned. 19 whatever and which continues under its provisions, does
20 Sol don't know -- 20 congtitute awater right of a nature.
21 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | have acode book |21 Sure, it's not been devel oped, true, but at
22 hereand | don't find that. | don't find a section that 22 thesametimel wasnotin alegal position. | was
23 isnumbered that high. 23 precluded from doing that which was (inaudible) to a
24 MR. KUGLER: Well, that wasin on old book of 24 complete development. And to methat is sort of an
25 mine, and | suspect it was deleted when they adopted the 25 inconsistency, that is, when I'm going ahead with
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1 inconsistency, asfar as saying, Hey, you have got to 1 land, but it was borderline marginal. And so when the
2 develop this, when | can't get awell permit, adrilling 2 County had to pick it out, thisis one they took off of
3 permit to proceed by reason of the adoption of the 3 theprogram.
4 moratorium code. 4 At the sametime as | financed, the big
5 And that inconsistency to meiswhat | have 5 finance on what was in existence at the time that |
6 been trying to do in the meantime. | have awayswanted | 6 signed the financing with Northwest Credit, was the
7 todevelopit, but at the sametime| couldn't let the 7 acquisition of another farm that | have, which was
8 landjust sit there and go to weeds. | had to do 8 basically my retirement from what little monies | had.
9 something about it. And putting it into grasses was a 9 | also came out of alitigation, alitigation
10 benefit to everyone. It produces alittle bit of 10 which | was not involved, but when some parties got a
11 revenue for me and at the same time produced abenefit |11 judgment on afarm that is located on the Power County
12 tothegeneral public, asfar as providing some very 12 and Oneida County line or just north of it, all within
13 good areafor grouse and other wildlife. 13 Power County, and that wasin existence.
14 Personally, actually in looking at the grass 14 And in order to acquire | had to put this
15 that was given to me-- and | know we talked about this |15  particular farm up with my water right on it to
16 at theinformal conference at one time as to whether 16  sufficiently finance the acquisition of that land. And
17 thisparticular ground actualy lieswithin that Blue 17 1 did have afarmer engaged in partnership on it, and he
18  Lakesgroundwater curtailment area or not. And 18 raninto hisfinancia problems and had to back out and
19 physically I can't tell from the map because | know how |19 | had to buy him out of that one as well.
20 far that particular boundary is marked on the map, and 20 So inthe meantime | finally paid off Farm
21 wediscussed the fact that it's not a good marking 21 Credit, as| said, 2003 or maybe 2004, but | kind of
22 described. 22 paid off on both farms at that point in time. And I'm
23 | don't know what the description is when it 23 now looking at what | can do to find something to do
24  was described because | haven't acquired actualy any 24 with this particular farm there, this small farmin
25 reading on how it reads either, as far as a section line 25 Pleasant Valley.
Page 19 Page 21
1 or whatever it is exists at that particular point. 1 And | think that hopefully these type of
2 | know that my land is located in the 2 thingsdo fal within the provisions of what the
3 southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 31 3 Department operates under, asfar as alleviating the
4 in Township 6 (inaudible) Range 31 east, and that isiit. 4  conditions of the stay, which will be concluded, as |
5 Butregardless, it's close, thereis no question about 5 said, asof October 1, 2007.
6 it 6 That iswhy when | put in the request
7 But | till think that -- and that iswhy I'm 7 origindly, | thought | could get it in within one year,
8 taking about mitigation and continues conditions, 8 knowing that | still have to get an extension of power
9 because the one condition that needsto be aleviated in 9 toreach that particular ground. It's about a quarter
10 thisparticular order, now that the ownership question 10 of amile of extension of line. Not knowing what Idaho
11 hasbeen started, iswhat is required to be able to 11 Power's current situation is, | thought maybe | should
12 alow meto hireadriller so that | can put the land 12 figure on athree-year plan.
13 into cultivation as was contemplated at the time and 13 The rules till provide, of course, that you
14 would have been done had | not had the one well driller |14 try to get started within what first year, and that is
15 quit on me after | had acquired the (inaudible) to 15 what | would like to do, even if it took alittle longer
16  proceed, and then the other guy commit afraud against |16 to get the power toward the actual usage on the farm
17 me with respect to it before getting that done. And so 17 itself. Thatiswherel am.
18 thatisall that | could do in the meantime, and that | 18 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.
19 guessisexactly wherel am. 19 MR. KUGLER: If there are any questions, | am
20 | believe that when this land goes back, | 20 certainly glad to answer them, as far as some of the
21 don't know whether thereis afarmer who isinterested |21  specifics, or if you need further documentation. |
22 intrying to put this very small tract of land into dry 22 agreewith you that, why on a couple of times Mr. Hill
23 farmagain in the lavarocks where it exists, because 23 proceeded with where he did and then didn't.
24 there are some good piles of rock in there that are 24 (Inaudible) the other, | don't know.
25  within afew inches of the surface. It's very margina 25 But they would change their offices from
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1 Blackfoot, where | normally was doing things, to Idaho 1 filed, was not aware of it until we got into these
2 Fdls, and | didn't get to see him very often during 2 proceedings where we aretoday. | guess basically that
3 that time, but he didn't come down to see me either 3 isabout the best | can do at this point in time.
4 because | was making my payments. 4 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, we could go
5 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: John, thereissome | 5 back and probably recreate arecord of why the
6 questionsthat, | guess, | have, and they have to do 6 application filed in 1984 was not processed until 1990.
7 morewith the basis for your challenge and the legal 7 And | suspect that that documentation probably would
8 groundsthat you may argue are the basis for the 8 show that there were orders and restrictions that were
9 Department alowing you to go forward. 9 putin place for the processing of the applications,
10 So | guess | would like to go back through the 10 would fall within what was called trust water area, and
11 information that we have, and try to pinpoint and 11 therewasan ongoing lawsuit with Idaho Power and the
12  identify the times and where you think the Department 12 Swan Falls agreement that was signed.
13 hasdone something that it's either not authorized to do 13 MR. KUGLER: | never had any notice of any of
14  or that at some juncture the Department should let go of 14  those proceedings or any information to that regard. |
15 whereweare at. 15 went through my old file, because | did have the old
16 So, as | seethisrecord, the permit was 16 filewith my old permit, and there was nothing in there
17 issuedtoyouin July -- on July 27, 1990. 17 tothat extent.
18 MR. KUGLER: Yes, even though | had put the 18 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, I don't find
19 permitinin 1984, during that period of time -- well, 19 any of that here, except | did find some correspondence
20 itdidn't appear here -- there was some communications 20 from Tim Lukein the, | think, early 1990s.
21 about thefirst well driller. He didn't get hiswork 21 MR. KUGLER: Yes. Therewas some
22 done when that got off, that was communicated to the 22 correspondence from him when he sent me a copy of the
23 Department, and there was no letter in here reflecting 23 '93 order or '92, as| remember it. | would haveto go
24 that, even anotation of the conversation that | had 24 back and look.
25  with the Department, they were made aware of it. And | 25 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: There shouldn't be
Page 23 Page 25
1 wastold -- and | think that is contained in a 1 --thisis'94, 1990, so --
2 application that | wastold not to be concerned with 2 MR. KUGLER: Yes.
3 because they weren't doing any processing by reason of 3 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: During the Swan
4 thewater hearings. And at that particular time they 4 Fallslitigation, Department approval may have been
5 were not doing any processing of permitsto actually go 5 delayed. The Department is presently reviewing your
6 ahead and issue themin '84, '85. 6 application.
7 But, of course, as| said at that time had | 7 MR. KUGLER: | do have that letter.
8 not had my problemsin that aspect, | would have them 8 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And that isthe
9 dl and wewouldn't be here where we aretoday. That is 9 firstindication, at least looking at this, so | think
10 what I'm talking about mitigation in that particular 10 what | would want to do is start with the date the
11 regard. 11 permit wasissued, because it wasissued, it had afirst
12 | do think that | had in 1990 when | was 12 priority date of October 4, 1984, which would be the
13 right, theright to get awell permit. | think that was 13 dateof filing. And so that below, other than perhaps
14 anexisting right at that time. But that existing right 14 now in retrospect looking back onit, if you had hurried
15 | think was then taken away from me when | caught 15 todevelop -- I'm not sure you could have. It probably
16 mention of the statutes. That isthe way | feel about 16 washeld up by Swan Falls anyway.
17  how that interpetation should be. 17 So this wasissued, and then following the
18 And when the limitation camein and it said: 18 issuance of that the Department issued an order in 1994,
19 Fine, thisisgoing to expirein 1997, | didn't think 19 subsequently issued another order in 1995 that stayed
20 about it because 1997 was when my contract wasup onthe |20 the development under this permit.
21 CRPcontract. And so at that time | thought: Fine, | 21 MR. KUGLER: Correct.
22 canjust go ahead. And then at one point thereafter | 22 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Now, you contest
23 didn't get ahold of the orders that Mr. Hill proceeded, 23  that particular order; is that correct?
24 | wasn't involved, and that is why we had that mixup 24 MR. KUGLER: Yes. | don't think -- because
25 about ownership that | didn't think was going to be 25 that stay, in effect, says you have to have awell
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1 drilling permit, which my permit did not require at the 1 MR. KUGLER: That'sall right. | dointend to
2 time-- well, it did have, but it saysthat my permit 2 figure out somehow how I can get into it, but --
3 said | could go ahead and drill, in effect, at that time 3 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Certainly the
4 itwasgrantedin'84. 4  Supreme Court -- of course, you don't have avehicle
5 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. 5 herewith you today.
6 MR. KUGLER: But yes, | know they changed that 6 MR. KUGLER: No, | do not, or | would have
7 and put the well drillersinto afiling, not being able 7 goneover. | haveto get back right away. Let's not
8 todo any work, but they adopted the well driller code 8 take any more time with the hearing now and I'll just
9 in'87. But | think that the effect of that -- and 9 look at this after we are through, if | may.
10 that's, again, | honestly believe, | don't know from a 10 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Yeah, that isfine.
11 legal standpoint, not being involved in water rights or 11 MR. KUGLER: If you have another question |
12 anything during this whole entire period of time and not 12 can--
13 having had any of the notices because of that very 13 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Yeah. | guess
14 complicated hearing, | know there were alot other 14  beyond that then, the order wasissued in 2005. And
15 people who did get notices from the Department, but | 15 then you received a notice that proof was due, and we
16 didn't, so | didn't know where| stood as far as that 16 issued an extension of time when you requested it. And
17 goes. 17 by my reading, that extension extended the time for
18 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, | dowantto |18 proof being due to coincide with the 2005 order. That
19 refer you to Idaho Code Section 42-1805, and thisis 19 istheway | read this, because the 2005 order -- let me
20 subparagraph No. 7 of 42-1805. And thisisacode 20 look back. | waslooking in the wrong place.
21 section that istitled "Additional Duties' and describes 21 By the way, this order actually quotes at the
22 some of the duties that have been delegated by the 22 timeitwasissued in 1995, Section 43-1805,
23 legidature to the director of the Department of Water 23 subparagraph 7. So it apparently wasin place at the
24 Resources. 24 timethisorder wasissued.
25 It says. "The director shall have the 25 But this order said at the -- thisis 1994,
Page 27 Page 29
1 following powers and duties in subparagraph 7." It 1 I'msorry. | meant tolook at the 1995 order.
2 says: "After notice to suspend the issuance where 2 The order that I'm referring to is an April
3 further action on permits or applications that is 3 4th--isdated April 4th, 1995. And thelast condition
4 necessary to protect existing vested water rights or to 4 under the order portion of the document states: "This
5 ensure compliance with provision of Chapter 2, Title 42 5 order does not grant a stay in development beyond
6 Idaho Code." 6 December 31st, 1997." Now, that language could be
7 S0 at least here in this code section it 7 interpreted a couple of ways. Oneway | guessit could
8 grantsthe director the authority to stop the 8 Dbeinterpreted isthat the stay in development is-- or
9 development under permits that had been issued to 9 thestay isfinished and that the period of time for
10 people. 10 development starts to run again.
11 MR. KUGLER: When was that adopted, if | may 11 MR. KUGLER: That iswhat | thought it meant,
12 ask? 12 because when it talked about well drilling expiring in
13 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, | would have |13 '97,infact, | thought by 1997 | could put into it,
14  to go back through -- 14 then| found out | couldn't.
15 MR. KUGLER: It should show at the bottom of 15 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Weéll, the request
16 thepage, | think. 16 for extension of time we approved also said proof of
17 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Sure. Yeah. | 17 beneficia use needed to be submitted by December 31st,
18 don't know -- | don't know how many amendments have been 18 1997. Now, usualy that setup, | guess, is aphysical
19 produced. There are several here. 19 impossibility because a stay wasin place, and thisis
20 Why don't | just show you. Y ou could look 20 theinconsistency, but we required the filing of proof
21  through those annotations or the history right at the 21 which couldn't be because there was a stay.
22 bottom and there are several amendments. So | don't 22 MR. KUGLER: And till cannot.
23 know whether that was added and when. We could go back 23 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And you had a CRP
24 through, | guess, the section once and it's possible. 24 contract (inaudible).
25 Wecould get you a copy of that if you want, John. 25 MR. KUGLER: That's correct.
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1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Sothentherewasa | 1 extension request, whichl filled out at that particular
2 second request for an extension of time that you filed. 2 pointintime, yes.
3 Andthisactually wasfiled, | think it's signed by 3 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: So you are not
4 Richard Hill. 4 contesting the issuance of these extensions of time.
5 MR. KUGLER: That'scorrect. Hefiled onein 5 MR. KUGLER: No, not at all.
6 December, and | filed a different one separately myself, 6 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: They are documents
7 and | can't remember when | got it filed. | filed one 7  that extend the permit --
8 onmy own, and | didn't see acopy of that, as| recall, 8 MR. KUGLER: Just how it affects me, and that
9 inthe papers| received. | filed one, paid a $50 fee 9 istheinconsistency that | talked about between, Hey,
10 askingto gotill 2006, and thereis aletter in there 10 thereisnoway | could ever comply with that until | am
11 telling meit was approved for the end of 2004, and | 11 abletodrill awell and put the water on it.
12 had requested to 2006. And | didn't seethat in that 12 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: So areyou
13 particular file. Maybe it's me, because there was so 13  contesting the ability of the Department now to issue
14  much paper to go through trying to figure out in the 14  another order continuing the indefinite stay in the
15 copying process what fit where. 15 development period?
16 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Sowhat | 16 MR. KUGLER: Yes, because at this particular
17 haveat least, and I'll try to reconcile those dates, 17 pointintimel can alleviateit, and that precludes me
18 but what | haveis, | have an extension of time that was 18 from being able to drill awell and convert it to what
19 approved until December 31st, 1997. Then | have another 19 it wasoriginaly intended.
20 onethat extended the time for development for another 20 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. All right.
21 fiveyears, and this was based on the CRP enrolIment, 21 Well, | understand the arguments. And | don't know that
22 until, December 1, 2002. And then | have another one 22 we need to go over anything else. Isthere anything
23 that -- and you filed for this one, and it extended the 23 that else that you want to discuss with us?
24 timefor proof of beneficial use until December 1, 2007. 24 MR. KUGLER: No. That concludes what | have
25 MR. KUGLER: Thereisone other onethat Mr. 25 and what | know at this particular point intime. | do
Page 31 Page 33
1 Hill filed. 1 appreciate the chanceto let me look at your code
2 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, it was 2 sections here for afew minutes.
3 jaintly filed. 3 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Yeah.
4 MR. KUGLER: Okay. 4 Jeff, do you have anything you want to ask at
5 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Sothereisadual | 5 thispoint?
6 signature on thisone. 6 MR. PEPPERSACK: No.
7 MR. KUGLER: Yeah, | remember he contacted me 7 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. All right.
8 at some point in time during that period of time, even 8 Thank you.
9 though I didn't have much remitting on my contract 9 MR. KUGLER: 1 just hope I've come up with the
10 there. 10 showing that conditionswill be aleviated asis set
11 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Butthisextended |11 forth, asagainst what isin -- and do that which | have
12 thedate for submittal of proof until December 1, 2007. 12 not been ableto do. And that thisinsignificant
13 At that point in time you filed another request for 13 consumption aspect is material to you and that you are
14 extension of time, and that is what prompted the 14 ableto find something from a mitigation standpoint asa
15 December 6, 2007 order from those signed by Jeff. 15 result of my particular problemsin this particular
16 MR. KUGLER: Yeah. | think thereisaletter 16 relevanttime.
17 intherethat shows that when | was concerned about the 17 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. And the
18 2007, which was the then end of my CRP contract. | 18 current period of CRP enrollment expires when?
19 originally had thought it was 2006 when | put in one 19 MR. KUGLER: September 30th, 2009.
20 request. 20 On October 11 can start to put water in, and
21 But anyway, | stopped in in September of 2000 21 | have been given permission to drill awell onit.
22 and was unable to get -- because the computers weren't 22 Thatisonly oral, | don't haveit in writing, from the
23 working that day that | wasin there. Talking with the 23 Department with the Power County agent.
24 onelady, and then they sent me the information that 24 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: You say by the
25 said: Herethisiswhat you need to do with the 25 Department, you are talking about someone from Power
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County.

MR. KUGLER: Yes. The Department of
Agriculture that deals with my CRP contract.

HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.

MR. KUGLER: He has authorized me, to say you
can put awell on it, but you cannot develop, further
development at thistime.

HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: So he saysyou can
put awell on when?

MR. KUGLER: Now. | can put one on tomorrow.

HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. That doesn't
violate the terms of the CRP.

MR. KUGLER: He saysit will not violate the
termsin thislast year of concern. He said, You can't
put water on it because that would be a violation.

HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Very good.
Thanks for your efforts and your traveling over, John,
nice to see you again.

MR. KUGLER: Tell Debby thank you for
arranging to have that proceeding right here. | didn't
even know it existed, and to accommodate me as far as
time so | can get down and back in aday.

HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Sure. Very good.
Okay. Well closetherecord. Thanks.

(End of audio tape.)
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

I, BEVERLY A. BENJAMIN, CSR No. 710, Certified
Shorthand Reporter, certify:

That the foregoing audio taped proceedings were
transcribed by me;

That the testimony and all objections made were
transcribed by me or under my direction;

That the foregoing is atrue and correct record
of al testimony given, to the best of my ability;

| further certify that | am not arelative or
employee of any attorney or party, nor am | financially
interested in the action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | set my hand and seal this
7th day of September 2011.
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(Start of audio tape.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. W are
recording. This is the tinme and place set for a hearing
regarding an order titled, "Order Continuing the
Indefinite Stay in Devel opnment Period," signed by the
Departnent in Decenber 2007, signed by Jeff Peppersack,
Bureau Chi ef Water Allocation Bureau. And it's in the
matter of permit No. 35-8359 in the nane of John B
Kugler, and at the time | think it listed Northwest Farm
Credit Services as well.

It seems to me that Northwest Farm Credit
Services is no |longer involved; or is that correct, M.
Kugl er ?

MR. KUGLER: That is correct. They should
have filed the fact that | paid the nortgage off back in
2003, but they didn't do that, or 2004. But they have
filed it now, soit's in ny nane alone at this point in
time and they have no interest in the property.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  |'m not sure we
have t hat change.

MR. KUGLER It's all there.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. W did have
you sign. So that has cone in since then, this was
dat ed January 28t h.

MR. KUGLER  That part has been accepted now
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by the Departnent.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  That was January
28th, and | didn't | ook at the records, but | assune
t hey' ve been changed. So our records should reflect
that this is nowin the nane of John B. Kugler, and the
case caption will be titled an anended so that you are
the sole owner of this permt shown in our records.

MR. KUGLER: Along with ny wife.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Onh, okay.

MR, KUGLER But | don't renmenber how it got
deeded back to ne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: It doesn't show
that in the assignnment. So | don't know how that is
shown, but we'll probably just have to list it the way
it isinthe permt for the Departnent.

MR. KUGLER  That may be in ny nane al one.

don't recall. Since then |I've gotten the original.
HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | suspect it is.
MR, KUGLER |'ve got "John B. or" on the
ori gi nal .

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  We don't normally
have -- well, the notice of prehearing conference shows
it in Kugler's nane, in John's nane.

MR. KUGLER  And/or Diane K., at ny request.

| put it that way, what | faxed in, because | excluded
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it in my own typing on ny request for reconsideration
that Northwest had no interest. And | just raised it as
an exception (inaudible).

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. | have this
request fromyou. Let's see, reconsider its finding,
shoul d we go down this path |I've been anticipating.

Just that we normally issue sonething that is, other
than that we've changed.

MR. PEPPERSACK: No. | think we should base
it conpletely on the assignnent trail. So the
assignnent was just in John's nane and that's as far as
it went.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: My guess i s that
that is the way our records show because that is the way
the assignnent is. | was |ooking for something el se
that m ght have changed that, and | don't see it here.

So anyway, that is probably sonething you nay
want to address |ater, John, if --

MR, KUGLER | would -- you don't need to.
I"mmaking a note to nyself in regard to that request of
time.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And it may require
that you assign the permit to you and your wife.

MR KUGER If I do that, I wll get

Nort hwest to execute another transfer docunent.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | think Northwest
has fully assigned the permt to you.

MR. KUGLER.  Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So | think at | east
we woul d recogni ze you as the sole owner of the permt
now. So | think it just --

MR. KUGLER  The only one that | woul d upset
is my wife. (Laughter.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And it probably nmay
or may not be community property. | don't know.

MR. KUGLER It definitely is conmunity
property.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | don't know what
the state of Washington is.

MR. KUGLER  Exactly, Washington is a
community property state, one of the eight.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Al right. So,
again, we are here. The order was issued in Novenber of
2007. And in response to service of the order upon him
or upon you, John, you requested reconsideration and a
hearing. That request for hearing was granted.

We conducted the prehearing conference, but we
met with you and tal ked about the facts and sone of the
background related to this. And then | wote a letter

to you that essentially confirnmed our opinion that the
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order would stand, and so we went forward with the
hearing, and that is why we are here today.

MR. KUGLER | understand, yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And before we began
t he recording, we discussed the way in which we woul d
proceed. Again, this is not necessarily a contested
case hearing because we don't have two parties. The
Department has issued a decision. This is an
opportunity for you, John, to present evidence for the
Departnent to consider in |ooking at everything again.
And then the Department will issue ultinmately a decision
based on the record that is provided today.

And | do want to mention for the record that
M. Kugler has received copies of all the docunments that
are contained in the file. And | have reviewed those
docunents and wi Il consider the docunents that are
contained therein in ultimately witing a prelimnmnary
order for this matter.

And |I'm sure, John, you have sone additi onal
docunents that you want to offer today.

MR, KUGER | did not bring any docunents.
The order required that | provide themto you in
advance, so | have not brought any docunments. | would
like to testify in the narrative, if | may.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Ckay. That is
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permtted, and | would be willing to allow you to offer
sonething if you have it. So | don't see a procedural
problemwi th that at this point.

I want to acknow edge today that Jeff
Peppersack is assisting nme today in this hearing. And |
also want to call attention to sone docunents that nay
not be here but are referred to in the Oder Continuing
the Indefinite Stay in Devel opnent Peri od.

There are a couple of docunments that | think
are inmportant. Qur orders issued by the Departnent that
are referred to as "noratoriumorders” that were issued
to all water right holders. | have at |east two
applicants that are -- there are two applicants whose
filings are pending, and those are referred to. There
is a May 15, 1992 order and, again, an April 30, 1993
order that was issued.

So anyway, with that background, John, | don't
have anything else to add as a prelimnary matter. Do
you have anything you want to say before you have an
opportunity to testify?

MR. KUGLER: No, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:.  Well, if you would

stand pl ease, John, and raise your right-hand.

111
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JOHN B. KUGLER
first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said
cause, testified as follows:

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Thank you. Pl ease
be seat ed.

As we di scussed before, you may narrate your
testinmony and we'll see where we go fromthere.

MR. KUGLER  Thank you, M. Spackman.

This particular property cane to ne as a part
of a particular problemin the devel opnent of doing an
estate for a person because it was owned prior to ny
acqui sition by about 13 different heirs, and the farner
who had been farming the particular property did not
want to buy it at its appraised val ue.

And so when one or two of the heirs insisted
that they would like to get their value out of it
percentage-wi se, | spoke with the nmgjority heir that was
i nvol ved, one of them had over a third interest of it,
and advised her that if she wanted to sell at any
particular tine -- but | felt it ought to always go for
at | east the appraised value and | woul d buy the odd
share so that she didn't have a particular problemin
covering on it. She could acquire it fromne if she
wi shed. And that was done and that is what started it.

And a couple years -- within that particul ar
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first couple of years, in the early '80s -- actually,

no, it was late '70s, she decided that she wanted to
sell hers as well. And at that point in tinme | acquired
all of the property and took out a loan from Farm Credit
Services for the purchase price that | needed to cone up
with to acquire the | and.

That farmwas being farnmed at the tine the
heir died by one farner. And when she decided to sell,
he decided he no | onger wanted to farmthe land. And I
found another farmer who would rent the property and
produce a little bit of funds, as far as incone to the
property was concerned. That was a man by the nane of
Mel vi n Funk.

Melvin, in the early '80s, got into his own
particul ar financial problens, and in 1983 he told ne he
could no longer and would no |onger attenpt to farmthe
| and, by reason of the fact that it was not very
productive. He was getting very low yields. Even when
he was farmng it, he would be lucky to get 15 to 18
bushel s of wheat off of the ground. As a result, he was
taki ng a good share of that.

| decided that | would, because | had the | oan
al nrost paid off and Farm Credit said they would give ne
a loan for developnent, | put in for the purpose of

devel oping the water in 1984, and the application was
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filed.

At that same time when | was |ooking for a
well driller, | found a driller, a young nman who had
been drilling, working for sonebody else for quite a

while. And he indicated that he woul d go ahead and

drill for me if I would buy the drilling rig, and he

woul d pay ne for any noney back, but if | would pay him

a particular rate for his tinme involved in the drilling.
| bought a drill rig that was found and

| ocated for $12,000. And then we discovered that the

bits that cane with it were insufficient, so | went out

and purchased a little larger bit, drill bit as

requi red, so we woul d have a 16-inch hole, and that cost

me an additional $1,600, and then | had sone

m scel | aneous expenses. So | was into that at about

13. 5.

And at that point in tine, in 1984, | didn't
have to have a drilling permt, nor did he. But the
young man then deci ded that he wanted to do sonet hing
el se and was not interested in drilling. | then found

anot her i ndividual who was an established well driller

who said he would drill it and take it over if | would
give himthe drill at the end of the period when he
finished. | indicated to himthat | would do so.

However, in 1987, 1988, he never got around to
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doing it. And, of course, in 1987 one was then required
to get a drilling permt before one could proceed with
t hat stage of the devel opnent.

As a result of himnot getting it done, | put
the land into CRP in 1986, because | was getting no
yield and nothing fromthe ground, and it was devel opi ng
into sone weed problens out there that was a concern to
both me and to Power County weed control people.

So | put it in there and took care of the
weeds and put it into the CRP program |In the nmeantine,
| discovered that that particular well driller had not
only not gone forward with what he indicated to do, but
he had actually stolen the well drilling machi ne and
sold it. So he was unable to even go forward with it.

I found another driller in 1990 who indicated
that he woul d go ahead, contacted the power conpany to
see about themrunning a line out to that particul ar
farmarea, which is located in the western part of Power
County and close to the | ava rocks, and he was now goi ng
to begin.

And | daho Power Conpany told nme that at that
point intime they required a two- or three-year
pl anni ng stage before they could even consi der extending
it. So when | talked with the well driller about that,

he withdrew his willingness to go forward.
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This continued through this particular period.
And, of course, | did receive the order indicating in
1992, | believe it was, | think it was the April 30 --
May 15, '92, or that one, about needing the well
drilling permit in going forward and was advi sed at that
time about its expiration in 1997, as far as sone of
t hat was concer ned.

Anyway, it continued in the CRP program
t hrough that period of tinme. And when | got a notice
about trying to put in the proof of conpletion and
devel opnment, | was unable to do so because | couldn't
get a well drilled and | couldn't put any water on the
| and because of the CRP. The ground renai ned agai n and
was put into CRP in 19 -- actually in 1996. The
Department of Agriculture extended it for one year on
their own and then sought new applications in 1997,
whi ch they extended then for a ten-year period expiring
in 2007.

At one point during that period of tine |
filed my own application for extension of tine for
conpl etion of work and asked that it be extended through
2006, because that was ny recoll ection of when the
current contract had been excl uded, and then determ ned
afterwards that it canme out to 2007.

But as | recall, the Departnment only granted
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me to 2004. And that particular determ nation, when
put in for that permt, | didn't go through the
Departnment of Water Resources, because when | had given
them the financing agreenment to begin with, it was only
going to go for five years, which then it's supposed to
be renewed, and | had never renewed it with them

O course, even after that, in 1994, | never
did receive the order direct from-- the first one on
February 4 fromthe Departnment, but Farm Credit sent it
to me and that is when | put in an application as to
that period of tine.

But the farm has been in CRP continuously.
Power County wanted it in there for a couple of reasons
that | indicated early to begin with, until 2007. And
before it got through to 2007, and early 2007, they
extended it for two nore years, through 2009.

As of this date that extension order which
existed, will not be reconsidered. It didn't require
anything by me to get that through to 2007 except to pay
thema snmall fee for a redeterm nation of acreage, which
had sone new aerial photos. But they wanted to do that
t hrough that period of tinme, and | think that had to do
with sonething with county all otnents.

But at the present time the county all otnent

is going to be reduced, | gather, and they wll not
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renew it. So come Cctober of 2007 -- or 2009, this
year, | will then be able to alleviate the problemwth
bei ng able to consider the devel opnment and conpl ete
devel opnment of the acreage as | now require.

The order that was issued, of course, in
granting the extension through 2007, in effect,
precludes ne fromdrilling. And obviously |I cannot put
wat er on, although | have been given oral permssion by
the County Departnent of Agriculture representative to
put a well in at any tinme so that | can start to
devel op.

I will not be able to put any water in, as
i ndi cated, until after October 1 of 2007. But at that
time | did find the prohibition against putting a well
on the prenmises, as long as | don't put extensions and
lines in for watering has been all evi at ed.

Qovi ously when the other alleviation cones,
then ny only particular problemthat | have, as far as
being able to supply the conpletion of works, which the
Depart nment has been extending for quite sonme tine, wll
be the problem of getting the perm ssion of drilling a
wel |, which did not exist at the tine the permt was
granted, but does now | guess exist, because |'ve been
told recently, since Decenber 17 -- or Decenber 17th

of -- or 21st, | guess, of this 2008, sonetinme during
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2008, that if | requested a well drilling permt, it
woul d not be issued. | presuned that that is based on
what | gather is being called the "ESPA noratorium"”

| believe with respect to that, that that ESPA
noratoriumcane into effect after the granting of this
permt, wherein | was permtted to drill a well w thout
acquiring a well drilling permt. | also believe that
the noratorium basically operated as an interference
with an existing right, which I think was precluded by
Section 42-1374(F) of the Idaho Code.

If I gather fromthe findings, it has been
determ ned by the Departnent that the consunption that I
requested for is insignificant.

MR PEPPERSACK: John, what is the code
section again that you referred to?

MR, KUGLER  42-1374(F). That was a basic one
in the original powers of the Departnent. | don't have
access to and could not get access to any suppl enents or
anything el se as far as that code section is concerned.
So | don't know --

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | have a code book
here and | don't find that. | don't find a section that
i s nunbered that high.

MR. KUGLER Well, that was in on old book of

mne, and | suspect it was del eted when they adopted the
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new code section. As | said, | didn't have access to
t he I daho Code.

I would have to go back and -- whenever the
new section was involved. | do understand from-- |
tal ked with sonebody el se that had been involved with
wat ers that there was anot her statute adopted at one
time that had to do with preservation of rights. And I
don't know what that code section is because of ny |ack
of being able to access any authority on it.

It had to do with, as | understand, including
probably sone sort of non-consunptive use, CRP type,
which is what | was precluded fromduring this period of
time, and other things in that regard, and I'm not sure
what they are.

I had planned to try to get to Pocatell o prior
to this hearing, and sone ot her devel opnents in ny own
personal situation precluded that between the tinme the
order cane out and this particular setting, so I was not
able to do that, as | said.

My conputer just -- ny wife's conputer wll
not access whatever it takes to get into the law library
and the Tacoma (inaudible.) Pierce County library
doesn't have anything --

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  There are two, |

think, references to set-aside prograns in the code, and
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one of those is related to whether the right can be
forfeited while it's in a set-aside program And the
code says that a water right cannot be forfeited. O
course, this is a permt, so | don't think that
forfeiture is a legal theory that would apply to a
permt.

The other provision of lawis that extensions
of time can be granted during the tenancy of that
enrollment in a federal set-aside program so that the
permt is sonehow not |ost because of failure of ability
to submt the proof of beneficial use during the
devel opnment peri od.

MR, KUGLER  Well, | appreciate that
expl anation, and | was suspecting that probably there
was sonmething like that, that is why | wanted to do the
research and I was unable to do so. | do think,
however, that the permt itself, as it existed at the
time when the drilling permit was not considered or
what ever and whi ch continues under its provisions, does
constitute a water right of a nature.

Sure, it's not been devel oped, true, but at
the sane tine | was not in a legal position. | was
precl uded from doing that which was (inaudible) to a
conpl ete devel opnment. And to nme that is sort of an

i nconsi stency, that is, when |I'm going ahead with
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i nconsi stency, as far as saying, Hey, you have got to
develop this, when | can't get a well permt, a drilling
permt to proceed by reason of the adoption of the

nor at ori um code.

And that inconsistency to nme is what | have
been trying to do in the neantine. | have al ways wanted
to develop it, but at the sane tinme | couldn't let the
land just sit there and go to weeds. | had to do
sonet hing about it. And putting it into grasses was a
benefit to everyone. It produces a little bit of
revenue for me and at the sanme tine produced a benefit
to the general public, as far as providing sone very
good area for grouse and other wildlife.

Personal Iy, actually in looking at the grass
that was given to ne -- and I know we tal ked about this
at the informal conference at one tinme as to whet her
this particular ground actually lies within that Blue
Lakes groundwater curtail nent area or not. And
physically | can't tell fromthe map because | know how
far that particular boundary is nmarked on the map, and
we di scussed the fact that it's not a good marking
descri bed.

| don't know what the description is when it
was descri bed because | haven't acquired actually any

reading on how it reads either, as far as a section line
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or whatever it is exists at that particul ar point.

I know that nmy land is located in the
sout heast quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 31
in Township 6 (inaudi ble) Range 31 east, and that is it.
But regardless, it's close, there is no question about
it.

But | still think that -- and that is why |'m
tal king about mtigation and continues conditions,
because the one condition that needs to be alleviated in
this particular order, now that the ownership question
has been started, is what is required to be able to
allowne to hire a driller so that | can put the I and
into cultivation as was contenplated at the tine and
woul d have been done had | not had the one well driller
quit on ne after | had acquired the (inaudible) to
proceed, and then the other guy commt a fraud agai nst
me with respect to it before getting that done. And so
that is all that | could do in the neantine, and that |
guess is exactly where | am

| believe that when this | and goes back,
don't know whether there is a farner who is interested
intrying to put this very small tract of land into dry
farmagain in the lava rocks where it exists, because
there are sone good piles of rock in there that are

within a few inches of the surface. It's very marginal
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land, but it was borderline marginal. And so when the
County had to pick it out, this is one they took off of
t he program

At the sane tine as | financed, the big
finance on what was in existence at the time that |
signed the financing with Northwest Credit, was the
acqui sition of another farmthat | have, which was
basically ny retirement fromwhat little nonies | had.

| also cane out of a litigation, a litigation
which I was not involved, but when sone parties got a
judgnent on a farmthat is |ocated on the Power County
and Oneida County line or just north of it, all within
Power County, and that was in existence.

And in order to acquire | had to put this
particular farmup with ny water right on it to
sufficiently finance the acquisition of that |and. And
| did have a farner engaged in partnership on it, and he
ran into his financial problens and had to back out and
I had to buy himout of that one as well.

So in the neantime | finally paid off Farm
Credit, as | said, 2003 or maybe 2004, but | Kkind of
paid off on both farnms at that point in tine. And I'm
now | ooking at what | can do to find something to do
with this particular farmthere, this small farmin

Pl easant Vall ey.
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And | think that hopefully these type of
things do fall within the provisions of what the
Depart ment operates under, as far as alleviating the
conditions of the stay, which will be concluded, as I
said, as of Cctober 1, 2007.

That is why when | put in the request

originally, I thought I could get it in within one year,
knowi ng that | still have to get an extension of power
to reach that particular ground. |It's about a quarter

of a mle of extension of line. Not know ng what |daho
Power's current situation is, | thought maybe | should
figure on a three-year plan.

The rules still provide, of course, that you
try to get started within what first year, and that is
what | would like to do, even if it took a little |onger
to get the power toward the actual usage on the farm
itself. That is where | am

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Ckay.

MR. KUGLER If there are any questions, | am
certainly glad to answer them as far as sone of the
specifics, or if you need further docunentation. |
agree with you that, why on a couple of times M. Hill
proceeded with where he did and then didn't.

(I'naudi bl e) the other, 1 don't know.

But they woul d change their offices from
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Bl ackfoot, where | normally was doing things, to |Idaho
Falls, and | didn't get to see himvery often during
that tinme, but he didn't come down to see ne either
because | was nmaki ng ny paynents.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  John, there is sone
guestions that, | guess, | have, and they have to do
nore with the basis for your challenge and the |egal
grounds that you may argue are the basis for the
Departnent allowi ng you to go forward.

So | guess | would |ike to go back through the
information that we have, and try to pinpoint and
identify the tinmes and where you think the Departnent
has done sonething that it's either not authorized to do
or that at sone juncture the Departnent should | et go of
where we are at.

So, as | see this record, the permt was
issued to you in July -- on July 27, 1990.

MR. KUGLER  Yes, even though | had put the
permt in in 1984, during that period of tinme -- well,
it didn't appear here -- there was sonme conmunications
about the first well driller. He didn't get his work
done when that got off, that was communicated to the
Departnent, and there was no letter in here reflecting
that, even a notation of the conversation that | had

with the Departnent, they were nade aware of it. And |
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was told -- and | think that is contained in a
application that I was told not to be concerned with
because they weren't doing any processing by reason of
the water hearings. And at that particular tinme they
were not doing any processing of permts to actually go
ahead and issue themin "84, '85.

But, of course, as | said at that tine had I
not had ny problens in that aspect, | would have them
all and we wouldn't be here where we are today. That is
what |'mtal king about mtigation in that particular
regard.

| do think that I had in 1990 when | was
right, the right to get a well permt. | think that was
an existing right at that tinme. But that existing right
I think was then taken away from nme when | caught
mention of the statutes. That is the way | feel about
how that interpetation should be.

And when the limtation cane in and it said:
Fine, this is going to expire in 1997, | didn't think
about it because 1997 was when ny contract was up on the
CRP contract. And so at that tinme |I thought: Fine, |
can just go ahead. And then at one point thereafter
didn't get ahold of the orders that M. Hill proceeded,
I wasn't involved, and that is why we had that m xup

about ownership that | didn't think was going to be
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filed, was not aware of it until we got into these
proceedi ngs where we are today. | guess basically that
is about the best | can do at this point in tinme.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Wl |, we could go
back and probably recreate a record of why the
application filed in 1984 was not processed until 1990.
And | suspect that that docunentation probably woul d
show that there were orders and restrictions that were
put in place for the processing of the applications,
would fall within what was called trust water area, and
there was an ongoing |lawsuit with | daho Power and the
Swan Falls agreenment that was signed.

MR. KUGLER | never had any notice of any of
t hose proceedings or any information to that regard.
went through ny old file, because |I did have the old
file wwth my old permt, and there was nothing in there
to that extent.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Well, | don't find
any of that here, except | did find sone correspondence
fromTimLuke in the, | think, early 1990s.

MR. KUGLER Yes. There was sone
correspondence from hi mwhen he sent nme a copy of the
'93 order or '92, as | renmenber it. | would have to go
back and | ook.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: There shouldn't be
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-- this is '94, 1990, so --

MR KUGLER  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  During the Swan
Falls litigation, Departnent approval may have been
del ayed. The Departnment is presently review ng your
appl i cati on.

MR. KUGLER: | do have that letter.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And that is the
first indication, at |least |ooking at this, so |I think
what | would want to do is start with the date the
permt was issued, because it was issued, it had a first
priority date of Cctober 4, 1984, which would be the
date of filing. And so that bel ow, other than perhaps
now i n retrospect |ooking back on it, if you had hurried
to develop -- I"'mnot sure you could have. It probably
was held up by Swan Falls anyway.

So this was issued, and then follow ng the
i ssuance of that the Departnent issued an order in 1994,
subsequently issued another order in 1995 that stayed
t he devel opnent under this permt.

MR. KUGLER  Correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Now, you cont est
that particular order; is that correct?

MR. KUGLER Yes. | don't think -- because

that stay, in effect, says you have to have a well
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drilling permt, which ny permt did not require at the
time -- well, it did have, but it says that nmy permt
said | could go ahead and drill, in effect, at that tine

it was granted in '84.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Ckay.

MR. KUGLER  But yes, | know they changed t hat
and put the well drillers into a filing, not being able
to do any work, but they adopted the well driller code
in'87. But I think that the effect of that -- and
that's, again, | honestly believe, | don't know from a
| egal standpoint, not being involved in water rights or
anything during this whole entire period of tinme and not
havi ng had any of the notices because of that very
conplicated hearing, | know there were a | ot other
peopl e who did get notices fromthe Departnent, but I
didn't, so | didn't know where | stood as far as that
goes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Well, | do want to
refer you to I daho Code Section 42-1805, and this is
subparagraph No. 7 of 42-1805. And this is a code
section that is titled "Additional Duties" and descri bes
sone of the duties that have been del egated by the
legislature to the director of the Department of Water
Resour ces.

It says: "The director shall have the
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foll ow ng powers and duties in subparagraph 7." It
says: "After notice to suspend the issuance where
further action on permts or applications that is
necessary to protect existing vested water rights or to
ensure conpliance with provision of Chapter 2, Title 42
| daho Code. "

So at least here in this code section it
grants the director the authority to stop the
devel opnment under permits that had been issued to
peopl e.

MR. KUGLER: When was that adopted, if | nmay
ask?

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Well, | would have
to go back through --

MR KUGLER It should show at the bottom of
t he page, | think.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Sure. Yeah.
don't know -- | don't know how nmany anmendnents have been
produced. There are several here.

Wy don't | just show you. You could | ook
t hrough those annotations or the history right at the
bottom and there are several anmendnments. So | don't
know whet her that was added and when. W could go back
t hrough, | guess, the section once and it's possible.

We could get you a copy of that if you want, John.
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MR, KUGLER That's all right. | do intend to
figure out somehow how | can get into it, but --

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Certainly the
Supreme Court -- of course, you don't have a vehicle
here with you today.

MR. KUGLER No, | do not, or | would have
gone over. | have to get back right away. Let's not
take any nore time with the hearing now and I'I1 just
| ook at this after we are through, if | may.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, that is fine.

MR. KUGLER: |If you have another question
can --

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Yeah. | guess
beyond that then, the order was issued in 2005. And
t hen you received a notice that proof was due, and we
i ssued an extension of time when you requested it. And
by nmy reading, that extension extended the tine for
proof being due to coincide with the 2005 order. That
is the way | read this, because the 2005 order -- let ne
| ook back. | was looking in the wong pl ace.

By the way, this order actually quotes at the
time it was issued in 1995, Section 43-1805,
subparagraph 7. So it apparently was in place at the
time this order was issued.

But this order said at the -- this is 1994,
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I"'msorry. | neant to | ook at the 1995 order.

The order that I'mreferring to is an Apri
4th -- is dated April 4th, 1995. And the last condition
under the order portion of the docunent states: "This
order does not grant a stay in devel opnent beyond
Decenber 31st, 1997." Now, that |anguage coul d be
interpreted a couple of ways. One way | guess it could
be interpreted is that the stay in devel opnent is -- or
the stay is finished and that the period of tine for
devel opnent starts to run again.

MR. KUGLER: That is what | thought it neant,
because when it tal ked about well drilling expiring in
"97, in fact, | thought by 1997 | could put into it,
then | found out | couldn't.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Wl |, the request
for extension of tinme we approved al so said proof of
beneficial use needed to be submtted by Decenber 31st,
1997. Now, usually that setup, | guess, is a physical
i npossibility because a stay was in place, and this is
t he i nconsi stency, but we required the filing of proof
whi ch couldn't be because there was a stay.

MR. KUGLER: And still cannot.

HEARI NG COFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And you had a CRP
contract (inaudible).

MR KUGER: That's correct.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So then there was a
second request for an extension of tinme that you fil ed.
And this actually was filed, | think it's signed by
Richard H Il.

MR KUGLER: That's correct. He filed one in
Decenber, and | filed a different one separately nyself,
and | can't renmenber when | got it filed. | filed one
on ny owmn, and I didn't see a copy of that, as | recall,
in the papers | received. | filed one, paid a $50 fee
asking to go till 2006, and there is a letter in there
telling nme it was approved for the end of 2004, and I
had requested to 2006. And | didn't see that in that
particular file. Mybe it's ne, because there was so
much paper to go through trying to figure out in the
copyi ng process what fit where.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:. (Ckay. So what |
have at least, and I'Il try to reconcile those dates,
but what | have is, | have an extension of tine that was
approved until Decenber 31st, 1997. Then | have anot her
one that extended the tinme for devel opnent for another
five years, and this was based on the CRP enroll nent,
until, Decenber 1, 2002. And then | have another one
that -- and you filed for this one, and it extended the
time for proof of beneficial use until Decenber 1, 2007.

MR KUGLER: There is one other one that M.
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Hill filed.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Well, it was
jointly filed.

MR, KUGLER  Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: So there is a dua
signature on this one.

MR. KUGLER: Yeah, | renenber he contacted ne
at sonme point in tine during that period of tine, even
t hough | didn't have nmuch remtting on ny contract
t here.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  But this extended
the date for submttal of proof until Decenber 1, 2007.
At that point in tine you filed another request for
extension of tine, and that is what pronpted the
Decenber 6, 2007 order fromthose signed by Jeff.

MR. KUGLER: Yeah. | think there is a letter
in there that shows that when | was concerned about the
2007, which was the then end of ny CRP contract. |
originally had thought it was 2006 when | put in one
request.

But anyway, | stopped in in Septenber of 2000
and was unable to get -- because the conputers weren't
working that day that | was in there. Talking with the
one |l ady, and then they sent ne the information that

said: Here this is what you need to do with the
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extension request, which | filled out at that particular
point in tine, yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So you are not
contesting the issuance of these extensions of tine.

MR KUGLER: No, not at all.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: They are docunents
that extend the permt --

MR KUGLER: Just how it affects nme, and that
is the inconsistency that | tal ked about between, Hey,
there is no way | could ever conply with that until | am
able to drill a well and put the water on it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So are you
contesting the ability of the Departnent now to issue
anot her order continuing the indefinite stay in the
devel opnment peri od?

MR. KUGLER  Yes, because at this particular
point intine | can alleviate it, and that precludes ne
frombeing able to drill a well and convert it to what
it was originally intended.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. All right.
Well, | understand the argunents. And | don't know that
we need to go over anything else. |s there anything
that else that you want to discuss with us?

MR. KUGLER No. That concl udes what | have

and what | know at this particular point in tinme. | do
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appreci ate the chance to let ne | ook at your code
sections here for a few m nutes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.

Jeff, do you have anything you want to ask at
this point?

MR. PEPPERSACK: No.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Okay. Al right.
Thank you.

MR. KUGER | just hope |I've cone up with the
showi ng that conditions will be alleviated as is set
forth, as against what is in -- and do that which |I have
not been able to do. And that this insignificant
consunption aspect is material to you and that you are
able to find sonething froma mitigation standpoint as a
result of ny particular problens in this particular
rel evant tine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. And the
current period of CRP enroll nent expires when?

MR. KUGLER  Septenber 30th, 2009.

On Cctober 1 1 can start to put water in, and
| have been given permssion to drill a well on it.

That is only oral, | don't have it in witing, fromthe
Departnent with the Power County agent.
HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  You say by the

Departnent, you are tal king about sonmeone from Power

208-345-9611 M & M COURT REPCRTI NG SERVI CE, | NC. 800- 234- 9611





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Audi o Taped Proceedings (In the Matter of Pernit to Appropriate Water No. 35-8359 In the Name of Joh

Page 34
1/21/ 2009

County.

MR. KUGLER Yes. The Departnent of
Agriculture that deals with my CRP contract.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Ckay.

MR. KUGLER: He has authorized nme, to say you
can put a well on it, but you cannot devel op, further
devel opnment at this tine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So he says you can
put a well on when?

MR KUGLER: Now. | can put one on tonorrow.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: (Ckay. That doesn't
violate the ternms of the CRP

MR, KUGLER He says it will not violate the
terns in this last year of concern. He said, You can't
put water on it because that would be a violation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Okay. Very good.
Thanks for your efforts and your traveling over, John,
nice to see you again.

MR. KUGLER  Tell Debby thank you for
arrangi ng to have that proceeding right here. 1 didn't
even know it existed, and to acconmpdate ne as far as
time so | can get down and back in a day.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Sure. Very good.
Ckay. We'll close the record. Thanks.

(End of audio tape.)
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          1               (Start of audio tape.)



          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  We are



          3     recording.  This is the time and place set for a hearing



          4     regarding an order titled, "Order Continuing the



          5     Indefinite Stay in Development Period," signed by the



          6     Department in December 2007, signed by Jeff Peppersack,



          7     Bureau Chief Water Allocation Bureau.  And it's in the



          8     matter of permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B.



          9     Kugler, and at the time I think it listed Northwest Farm



         10     Credit Services as well.



         11               It seems to me that Northwest Farm Credit



         12     Services is no longer involved; or is that correct, Mr.



         13     Kugler?



         14               MR. KUGLER:  That is correct.  They should



         15     have filed the fact that I paid the mortgage off back in



         16     2003, but they didn't do that, or 2004.  But they have



         17     filed it now, so it's in my name alone at this point in



         18     time and they have no interest in the property.



         19               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I'm not sure we



         20     have that change.



         21               MR. KUGLER:  It's all there.



         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  We did have



         23     you sign.  So that has come in since then, this was



         24     dated January 28th.



         25               MR. KUGLER:  That part has been accepted now
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          1     by the Department.



          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That was January



          3     28th, and I didn't look at the records, but I assume



          4     they've been changed.  So our records should reflect



          5     that this is now in the name of John B. Kugler, and the



          6     case caption will be titled an amended so that you are



          7     the sole owner of this permit shown in our records.



          8               MR. KUGLER:  Along with my wife.



          9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Oh, okay.



         10               MR. KUGLER:  But I don't remember how it got



         11     deeded back to me.



         12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  It doesn't show



         13     that in the assignment.  So I don't know how that is



         14     shown, but we'll probably just have to list it the way



         15     it is in the permit for the Department.



         16               MR. KUGLER:  That may be in my name alone.  I



         17     don't recall.  Since then I've gotten the original.



         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I suspect it is.



         19               MR. KUGLER:  I've got "John B. or" on the



         20     original.



         21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  We don't normally



         22     have -- well, the notice of prehearing conference shows



         23     it in Kugler's name, in John's name.



         24               MR. KUGLER:  And/or Diane K., at my request.



         25     I put it that way, what I faxed in, because I excluded

�



                                                                       4









          1     it in my own typing on my request for reconsideration



          2     that Northwest had no interest.  And I just raised it as



          3     an exception (inaudible).



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  I have this



          5     request from you.  Let's see, reconsider its finding,



          6     should we go down this path I've been anticipating.



          7     Just that we normally issue something that is, other



          8     than that we've changed.



          9               MR. PEPPERSACK:  No.  I think we should base



         10     it completely on the assignment trail.  So the



         11     assignment was just in John's name and that's as far as



         12     it went.



         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  My guess is that



         14     that is the way our records show because that is the way



         15     the assignment is.  I was looking for something else



         16     that might have changed that, and I don't see it here.



         17               So anyway, that is probably something you may



         18     want to address later, John, if --



         19               MR. KUGLER:  I would -- you don't need to.



         20     I'm making a note to myself in regard to that request of



         21     time.



         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And it may require



         23     that you assign the permit to you and your wife.



         24               MR. KUGLER:  If I do that, I will get



         25     Northwest to execute another transfer document.
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I think Northwest



          2     has fully assigned the permit to you.



          3               MR. KUGLER:  Okay.



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So I think at least



          5     we would recognize you as the sole owner of the permit



          6     now.  So I think it just --



          7               MR. KUGLER:  The only one that I would upset



          8     is my wife.  (Laughter.)



          9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And it probably may



         10     or may not be community property.  I don't know.



         11               MR. KUGLER:  It definitely is community



         12     property.



         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I don't know what



         14     the state of Washington is.



         15               MR. KUGLER:  Exactly, Washington is a



         16     community property state, one of the eight.



         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  All right.  So,



         18     again, we are here.  The order was issued in November of



         19     2007.  And in response to service of the order upon him,



         20     or upon you, John, you requested reconsideration and a



         21     hearing.  That request for hearing was granted.



         22               We conducted the prehearing conference, but we



         23     met with you and talked about the facts and some of the



         24     background related to this.  And then I wrote a letter



         25     to you that essentially confirmed our opinion that the
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          1     order would stand, and so we went forward with the



          2     hearing, and that is why we are here today.



          3               MR. KUGLER:  I understand, yes.



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And before we began



          5     the recording, we discussed the way in which we would



          6     proceed.  Again, this is not necessarily a contested



          7     case hearing because we don't have two parties.  The



          8     Department has issued a decision.  This is an



          9     opportunity for you, John, to present evidence for the



         10     Department to consider in looking at everything again.



         11     And then the Department will issue ultimately a decision



         12     based on the record that is provided today.



         13               And I do want to mention for the record that



         14     Mr. Kugler has received copies of all the documents that



         15     are contained in the file.  And I have reviewed those



         16     documents and will consider the documents that are



         17     contained therein in ultimately writing a preliminary



         18     order for this matter.



         19               And I'm sure, John, you have some additional



         20     documents that you want to offer today.



         21               MR. KUGLER:  I did not bring any documents.



         22     The order required that I provide them to you in



         23     advance, so I have not brought any documents.  I would



         24     like to testify in the narrative, if I may.



         25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That is
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          1     permitted, and I would be willing to allow you to offer



          2     something if you have it.  So I don't see a procedural



          3     problem with that at this point.



          4               I want to acknowledge today that Jeff



          5     Peppersack is assisting me today in this hearing.  And I



          6     also want to call attention to some documents that may



          7     not be here but are referred to in the Order Continuing



          8     the Indefinite Stay in Development Period.



          9               There are a couple of documents that I think



         10     are important.  Our orders issued by the Department that



         11     are referred to as "moratorium orders" that were issued



         12     to all water right holders.  I have at least two



         13     applicants that are -- there are two applicants whose



         14     filings are pending, and those are referred to.  There



         15     is a May 15, 1992 order and, again, an April 30, 1993



         16     order that was issued.



         17               So anyway, with that background, John, I don't



         18     have anything else to add as a preliminary matter.  Do



         19     you have anything you want to say before you have an



         20     opportunity to testify?



         21               MR. KUGLER:  No, sir.



         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, if you would



         23     stand please, John, and raise your right-hand.



         24



         25     ///
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          1                           JOHN B. KUGLER,



          2     first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said



          3     cause, testified as follows:



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you.  Please



          5     be seated.



          6               As we discussed before, you may narrate your



          7     testimony and we'll see where we go from there.



          8               MR. KUGLER:  Thank you, Mr. Spackman.



          9               This particular property came to me as a part



         10     of a particular problem in the development of doing an



         11     estate for a person because it was owned prior to my



         12     acquisition by about 13 different heirs, and the farmer



         13     who had been farming the particular property did not



         14     want to buy it at its appraised value.



         15               And so when one or two of the heirs insisted



         16     that they would like to get their value out of it



         17     percentage-wise, I spoke with the majority heir that was



         18     involved, one of them had over a third interest of it,



         19     and advised her that if she wanted to sell at any



         20     particular time -- but I felt it ought to always go for



         21     at least the appraised value and I would buy the odd



         22     share so that she didn't have a particular problem in



         23     covering on it.  She could acquire it from me if she



         24     wished.  And that was done and that is what started it.



         25               And a couple years -- within that particular
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          1     first couple of years, in the early '80s -- actually,



          2     no, it was late '70s, she decided that she wanted to



          3     sell hers as well.  And at that point in time I acquired



          4     all of the property and took out a loan from Farm Credit



          5     Services for the purchase price that I needed to come up



          6     with to acquire the land.



          7               That farm was being farmed at the time the



          8     heir died by one farmer.  And when she decided to sell,



          9     he decided he no longer wanted to farm the land.  And I



         10     found another farmer who would rent the property and



         11     produce a little bit of funds, as far as income to the



         12     property was concerned.  That was a man by the name of



         13     Melvin Funk.



         14               Melvin, in the early '80s, got into his own



         15     particular financial problems, and in 1983 he told me he



         16     could no longer and would no longer attempt to farm the



         17     land, by reason of the fact that it was not very



         18     productive.  He was getting very low yields.  Even when



         19     he was farming it, he would be lucky to get 15 to 18



         20     bushels of wheat off of the ground.  As a result, he was



         21     taking a good share of that.



         22               I decided that I would, because I had the loan



         23     almost paid off and Farm Credit said they would give me



         24     a loan for development, I put in for the purpose of



         25     developing the water in 1984, and the application was
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          1     filed.



          2               At that same time when I was looking for a



          3     well driller, I found a driller, a young man who had



          4     been drilling, working for somebody else for quite a



          5     while.  And he indicated that he would go ahead and



          6     drill for me if I would buy the drilling rig, and he



          7     would pay me for any money back, but if I would pay him



          8     a particular rate for his time involved in the drilling.



          9               I bought a drill rig that was found and



         10     located for $12,000.  And then we discovered that the



         11     bits that came with it were insufficient, so I went out



         12     and purchased a little larger bit, drill bit as



         13     required, so we would have a 16-inch hole, and that cost



         14     me an additional $1,600, and then I had some



         15     miscellaneous expenses.  So I was into that at about



         16     13.5.



         17               And at that point in time, in 1984, I didn't



         18     have to have a drilling permit, nor did he.  But the



         19     young man then decided that he wanted to do something



         20     else and was not interested in drilling.  I then found



         21     another individual who was an established well driller



         22     who said he would drill it and take it over if I would



         23     give him the drill at the end of the period when he



         24     finished.  I indicated to him that I would do so.



         25              However, in 1987, 1988, he never got around to
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          1     doing it.  And, of course, in 1987 one was then required



          2     to get a drilling permit before one could proceed with



          3     that stage of the development.



          4               As a result of him not getting it done, I put



          5     the land into CRP in 1986, because I was getting no



          6     yield and nothing from the ground, and it was developing



          7     into some weed problems out there that was a concern to



          8     both me and to Power County weed control people.



          9               So I put it in there and took care of the



         10     weeds and put it into the CRP program.  In the meantime,



         11     I discovered that that particular well driller had not



         12     only not gone forward with what he indicated to do, but



         13     he had actually stolen the well drilling machine and



         14     sold it.  So he was unable to even go forward with it.



         15               I found another driller in 1990 who indicated



         16     that he would go ahead, contacted the power company to



         17     see about them running a line out to that particular



         18     farm area, which is located in the western part of Power



         19     County and close to the lava rocks, and he was now going



         20     to begin.



         21               And Idaho Power Company told me that at that



         22     point in time they required a two- or three-year



         23     planning stage before they could even consider extending



         24     it.  So when I talked with the well driller about that,



         25     he withdrew his willingness to go forward.
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          1               This continued through this particular period.



          2     And, of course, I did receive the order indicating in



          3     1992, I believe it was, I think it was the April 30 --



          4     May 15, '92, or that one, about needing the well



          5     drilling permit in going forward and was advised at that



          6     time about its expiration in 1997, as far as some of



          7     that was concerned.



          8               Anyway, it continued in the CRP program



          9     through that period of time.  And when I got a notice



         10     about trying to put in the proof of completion and



         11     development, I was unable to do so because I couldn't



         12     get a well drilled and I couldn't put any water on the



         13     land because of the CRP.  The ground remained again and



         14     was put into CRP in 19 -- actually in 1996.  The



         15     Department of Agriculture extended it for one year on



         16     their own and then sought new applications in 1997,



         17     which they extended then for a ten-year period expiring



         18     in 2007.



         19               At one point during that period of time I



         20     filed my own application for extension of time for



         21     completion of work and asked that it be extended through



         22     2006, because that was my recollection of when the



         23     current contract had been excluded, and then determined



         24     afterwards that it came out to 2007.



         25               But as I recall, the Department only granted
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          1     me to 2004.  And that particular determination, when I



          2     put in for that permit, I didn't go through the



          3     Department of Water Resources, because when I had given



          4     them the financing agreement to begin with, it was only



          5     going to go for five years, which then it's supposed to



          6     be renewed, and I had never renewed it with them.



          7               Of course, even after that, in 1994, I never



          8     did receive the order direct from -- the first one on



          9     February 4 from the Department, but Farm Credit sent it



         10     to me and that is when I put in an application as to



         11     that period of time.



         12               But the farm has been in CRP continuously.



         13     Power County wanted it in there for a couple of reasons



         14     that I indicated early to begin with, until 2007.  And



         15     before it got through to 2007, and early 2007, they



         16     extended it for two more years, through 2009.



         17               As of this date that extension order which



         18     existed, will not be reconsidered.  It didn't require



         19     anything by me to get that through to 2007 except to pay



         20     them a small fee for a redetermination of acreage, which



         21     had some new aerial photos.  But they wanted to do that



         22     through that period of time, and I think that had to do



         23     with something with county allotments.



         24               But at the present time the county allotment



         25     is going to be reduced, I gather, and they will not
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          1     renew it.  So come October of 2007 -- or 2009, this



          2     year, I will then be able to alleviate the problem with



          3     being able to consider the development and complete



          4     development of the acreage as I now require.



          5               The order that was issued, of course, in



          6     granting the extension through 2007, in effect,



          7     precludes me from drilling.  And obviously I cannot put



          8     water on, although I have been given oral permission by



          9     the County Department of Agriculture representative to



         10     put a well in at any time so that I can start to



         11     develop.



         12               I will not be able to put any water in, as



         13     indicated, until after October 1 of 2007.  But at that



         14     time I did find the prohibition against putting a well



         15     on the premises, as long as I don't put extensions and



         16     lines in for watering has been alleviated.



         17               Obviously when the other alleviation comes,



         18     then my only particular problem that I have, as far as



         19     being able to supply the completion of works, which the



         20     Department has been extending for quite some time, will



         21     be the problem of getting the permission of drilling a



         22     well, which did not exist at the time the permit was



         23     granted, but does now I guess exist, because I've been



         24     told recently, since December 17 -- or December 17th



         25     of -- or 21st, I guess, of this 2008, sometime during
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          1     2008, that if I requested a well drilling permit, it



          2     would not be issued.  I presumed that that is based on



          3     what I gather is being called the "ESPA moratorium."



          4               I believe with respect to that, that that ESPA



          5     moratorium came into effect after the granting of this



          6     permit, wherein I was permitted to drill a well without



          7     acquiring a well drilling permit.  I also believe that



          8     the moratorium basically operated as an interference



          9     with an existing right, which I think was precluded by



         10     Section 42-1374(F) of the Idaho Code.



         11               If I gather from the findings, it has been



         12     determined by the Department that the consumption that I



         13     requested for is insignificant.



         14               MR. PEPPERSACK:  John, what is the code



         15     section again that you referred to?



         16               MR. KUGLER:  42-1374(F).  That was a basic one



         17     in the original powers of the Department.  I don't have



         18     access to and could not get access to any supplements or



         19     anything else as far as that code section is concerned.



         20     So I don't know --



         21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I have a code book



         22     here and I don't find that.  I don't find a section that



         23     is numbered that high.



         24               MR. KUGLER:  Well, that was in on old book of



         25     mine, and I suspect it was deleted when they adopted the
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          1     new code section.  As I said, I didn't have access to



          2     the Idaho Code.



          3               I would have to go back and -- whenever the



          4     new section was involved.  I do understand from -- I



          5     talked with somebody else that had been involved with



          6     waters that there was another statute adopted at one



          7     time that had to do with preservation of rights.  And I



          8     don't know what that code section is because of my lack



          9     of being able to access any authority on it.



         10               It had to do with, as I understand, including



         11     probably some sort of non-consumptive use, CRP type,



         12     which is what I was precluded from during this period of



         13     time, and other things in that regard, and I'm not sure



         14     what they are.



         15               I had planned to try to get to Pocatello prior



         16     to this hearing, and some other developments in my own



         17     personal situation precluded that between the time the



         18     order came out and this particular setting, so I was not



         19     able to do that, as I said.



         20               My computer just -- my wife's computer will



         21     not access whatever it takes to get into the law library



         22     and the Tacoma (inaudible.)  Pierce County library



         23     doesn't have anything --



         24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There are two, I



         25     think, references to set-aside programs in the code, and
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          1     one of those is related to whether the right can be



          2     forfeited while it's in a set-aside program.  And the



          3     code says that a water right cannot be forfeited.  Of



          4     course, this is a permit, so I don't think that



          5     forfeiture is a legal theory that would apply to a



          6     permit.



          7               The other provision of law is that extensions



          8     of time can be granted during the tenancy of that



          9     enrollment in a federal set-aside program, so that the



         10     permit is somehow not lost because of failure of ability



         11     to submit the proof of beneficial use during the



         12     development period.



         13               MR. KUGLER:  Well, I appreciate that



         14     explanation, and I was suspecting that probably there



         15     was something like that, that is why I wanted to do the



         16     research and I was unable to do so.  I do think,



         17     however, that the permit itself, as it existed at the



         18     time when the drilling permit was not considered or



         19     whatever and which continues under its provisions, does



         20     constitute a water right of a nature.



         21               Sure, it's not been developed, true, but at



         22     the same time I was not in a legal position.  I was



         23     precluded from doing that which was (inaudible) to a



         24     complete development.  And to me that is sort of an



         25     inconsistency, that is, when I'm going ahead with
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          1     inconsistency, as far as saying, Hey, you have got to



          2     develop this, when I can't get a well permit, a drilling



          3     permit to proceed by reason of the adoption of the



          4     moratorium code.



          5               And that inconsistency to me is what I have



          6     been trying to do in the meantime.  I have always wanted



          7     to develop it, but at the same time I couldn't let the



          8     land just sit there and go to weeds.  I had to do



          9     something about it.  And putting it into grasses was a



         10     benefit to everyone.  It produces a little bit of



         11     revenue for me and at the same time produced a benefit



         12     to the general public, as far as providing some very



         13     good area for grouse and other wildlife.



         14               Personally, actually in looking at the grass



         15     that was given to me -- and I know we talked about this



         16     at the informal conference at one time as to whether



         17     this particular ground actually lies within that Blue



         18     Lakes groundwater curtailment area or not.  And



         19     physically I can't tell from the map because I know how



         20     far that particular boundary is marked on the map, and



         21     we discussed the fact that it's not a good marking



         22     described.



         23               I don't know what the description is when it



         24     was described because I haven't acquired actually any



         25     reading on how it reads either, as far as a section line
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          1     or whatever it is exists at that particular point.



          2               I know that my land is located in the



          3     southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 31



          4     in Township 6 (inaudible) Range 31 east, and that is it.



          5     But regardless, it's close, there is no question about



          6     it.



          7               But I still think that -- and that is why I'm



          8     talking about mitigation and continues conditions,



          9     because the one condition that needs to be alleviated in



         10     this particular order, now that the ownership question



         11     has been started, is what is required to be able to



         12     allow me to hire a driller so that I can put the land



         13     into cultivation as was contemplated at the time and



         14     would have been done had I not had the one well driller



         15     quit on me after I had acquired the (inaudible) to



         16     proceed, and then the other guy commit a fraud against



         17     me with respect to it before getting that done.  And so



         18     that is all that I could do in the meantime, and that I



         19     guess is exactly where I am.



         20               I believe that when this land goes back, I



         21     don't know whether there is a farmer who is interested



         22     in trying to put this very small tract of land into dry



         23     farm again in the lava rocks where it exists, because



         24     there are some good piles of rock in there that are



         25     within a few inches of the surface.  It's very marginal
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          1     land, but it was borderline marginal.  And so when the



          2     County had to pick it out, this is one they took off of



          3     the program.



          4               At the same time as I financed, the big



          5     finance on what was in existence at the time that I



          6     signed the financing with Northwest Credit, was the



          7     acquisition of another farm that I have, which was



          8     basically my retirement from what little monies I had.



          9               I also came out of a litigation, a litigation



         10     which I was not involved, but when some parties got a



         11     judgment on a farm that is located on the Power County



         12     and Oneida County line or just north of it, all within



         13     Power County, and that was in existence.



         14               And in order to acquire I had to put this



         15     particular farm up with my water right on it to



         16     sufficiently finance the acquisition of that land.  And



         17     I did have a farmer engaged in partnership on it, and he



         18     ran into his financial problems and had to back out and



         19     I had to buy him out of that one as well.



         20               So in the meantime I finally paid off Farm



         21     Credit, as I said, 2003 or maybe 2004, but I kind of



         22     paid off on both farms at that point in time.  And I'm



         23     now looking at what I can do to find something to do



         24     with this particular farm there, this small farm in



         25     Pleasant Valley.
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          1               And I think that hopefully these type of



          2     things do fall within the provisions of what the



          3     Department operates under, as far as alleviating the



          4     conditions of the stay, which will be concluded, as I



          5     said, as of October 1, 2007.



          6               That is why when I put in the request



          7     originally, I thought I could get it in within one year,



          8     knowing that I still have to get an extension of power



          9     to reach that particular ground.  It's about a quarter



         10     of a mile of extension of line.  Not knowing what Idaho



         11     Power's current situation is, I thought maybe I should



         12     figure on a three-year plan.



         13               The rules still provide, of course, that you



         14     try to get started within what first year, and that is



         15     what I would like to do, even if it took a little longer



         16     to get the power toward the actual usage on the farm



         17     itself.  That is where I am.



         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.



         19               MR. KUGLER:  If there are any questions, I am



         20     certainly glad to answer them, as far as some of the



         21     specifics, or if you need further documentation.  I



         22     agree with you that, why on a couple of times Mr. Hill



         23     proceeded with where he did and then didn't.



         24     (Inaudible) the other, I don't know.



         25               But they would change their offices from
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          1     Blackfoot, where I normally was doing things, to Idaho



          2     Falls, and I didn't get to see him very often during



          3     that time, but he didn't come down to see me either



          4     because I was making my payments.



          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  John, there is some



          6     questions that, I guess, I have, and they have to do



          7     more with the basis for your challenge and the legal



          8     grounds that you may argue are the basis for the



          9     Department allowing you to go forward.



         10               So I guess I would like to go back through the



         11     information that we have, and try to pinpoint and



         12     identify the times and where you think the Department



         13     has done something that it's either not authorized to do



         14     or that at some juncture the Department should let go of



         15     where we are at.



         16               So, as I see this record, the permit was



         17     issued to you in July -- on July 27, 1990.



         18               MR. KUGLER:  Yes, even though I had put the



         19     permit in in 1984, during that period of time -- well,



         20     it didn't appear here -- there was some communications



         21     about the first well driller.  He didn't get his work



         22     done when that got off, that was communicated to the



         23     Department, and there was no letter in here reflecting



         24     that, even a notation of the conversation that I had



         25     with the Department, they were made aware of it.  And I
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          1     was told -- and I think that is contained in a



          2     application that I was told not to be concerned with



          3     because they weren't doing any processing by reason of



          4     the water hearings.  And at that particular time they



          5     were not doing any processing of permits to actually go



          6     ahead and issue them in '84, '85.



          7                But, of course, as I said at that time had I



          8     not had my problems in that aspect, I would have them



          9     all and we wouldn't be here where we are today.  That is



         10     what I'm talking about mitigation in that particular



         11     regard.



         12               I do think that I had in 1990 when I was



         13     right, the right to get a well permit.  I think that was



         14     an existing right at that time.  But that existing right



         15     I think was then taken away from me when I caught



         16     mention of the statutes.  That is the way I feel about



         17     how that interpetation should be.



         18               And when the limitation came in and it said:



         19     Fine, this is going to expire in 1997, I didn't think



         20     about it because 1997 was when my contract was up on the



         21     CRP contract.  And so at that time I thought:  Fine, I



         22     can just go ahead.  And then at one point thereafter I



         23     didn't get ahold of the orders that Mr. Hill proceeded,



         24     I wasn't involved, and that is why we had that mixup



         25     about ownership that I didn't think was going to be
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          1     filed, was not aware of it until we got into these



          2     proceedings where we are today.  I guess basically that



          3     is about the best I can do at this point in time.



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, we could go



          5     back and probably recreate a record of why the



          6     application filed in 1984 was not processed until 1990.



          7     And I suspect that that documentation probably would



          8     show that there were orders and restrictions that were



          9     put in place for the processing of the applications,



         10     would fall within what was called trust water area, and



         11     there was an ongoing lawsuit with Idaho Power and the



         12     Swan Falls agreement that was signed.



         13               MR. KUGLER:  I never had any notice of any of



         14     those proceedings or any information to that regard.  I



         15     went through my old file, because I did have the old



         16     file with my old permit, and there was nothing in there



         17     to that extent.



         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I don't find



         19     any of that here, except I did find some correspondence



         20     from Tim Luke in the, I think, early 1990s.



         21               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  There was some



         22     correspondence from him when he sent me a copy of the



         23     '93 order or '92, as I remember it.  I would have to go



         24     back and look.



         25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There shouldn't be
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          1     -- this is '94, 1990, so --



          2               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.



          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  During the Swan



          4     Falls litigation, Department approval may have been



          5     delayed.  The Department is presently reviewing your



          6     application.



          7               MR. KUGLER:  I do have that letter.



          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And that is the



          9     first indication, at least looking at this, so I think



         10     what I would want to do is start with the date the



         11     permit was issued, because it was issued, it had a first



         12     priority date of October 4, 1984, which would be the



         13     date of filing.  And so that below, other than perhaps



         14     now in retrospect looking back on it, if you had hurried



         15     to develop -- I'm not sure you could have.  It probably



         16     was held up by Swan Falls anyway.



         17               So this was issued, and then following the



         18     issuance of that the Department issued an order in 1994,



         19     subsequently issued another order in 1995 that stayed



         20     the development under this permit.



         21               MR. KUGLER:  Correct.



         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Now, you contest



         23     that particular order; is that correct?



         24               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  I don't think -- because



         25     that stay, in effect, says you have to have a well
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          1     drilling permit, which my permit did not require at the



          2     time -- well, it did have, but it says that my permit



          3     said I could go ahead and drill, in effect, at that time



          4     it was granted in '84.



          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.



          6               MR. KUGLER:  But yes, I know they changed that



          7     and put the well drillers into a filing, not being able



          8     to do any work, but they adopted the well driller code



          9     in '87.  But I think that the effect of that -- and



         10     that's, again, I honestly believe, I don't know from a



         11     legal standpoint, not being involved in water rights or



         12     anything during this whole entire period of time and not



         13     having had any of the notices because of that very



         14     complicated hearing, I know there were a lot other



         15     people who did get notices from the Department, but I



         16     didn't, so I didn't know where I stood as far as that



         17     goes.



         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I do want to



         19     refer you to Idaho Code Section 42-1805, and this is



         20     subparagraph No. 7 of 42-1805.  And this is a code



         21     section that is titled "Additional Duties" and describes



         22     some of the duties that have been delegated by the



         23     legislature to the director of the Department of Water



         24     Resources.



         25               It says:  "The director shall have the
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          1     following powers and duties in subparagraph 7."  It



          2     says:  "After notice to suspend the issuance where



          3     further action on permits or applications that is



          4     necessary to protect existing vested water rights or to



          5     ensure compliance with provision of Chapter 2, Title 42



          6     Idaho Code."



          7               So at least here in this code section it



          8     grants the director the authority to stop the



          9     development under permits that had been issued to



         10     people.



         11               MR. KUGLER:  When was that adopted, if I may



         12     ask?



         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I would have



         14     to go back through --



         15               MR. KUGLER:  It should show at the bottom of



         16     the page, I think.



         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Sure.  Yeah.  I



         18     don't know -- I don't know how many amendments have been



         19     produced.  There are several here.



         20               Why don't I just show you.  You could look



         21     through those annotations or the history right at the



         22     bottom and there are several amendments.  So I don't



         23     know whether that was added and when.  We could go back



         24     through, I guess, the section once and it's possible.



         25     We could get you a copy of that if you want, John.
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          1               MR. KUGLER:  That's all right.  I do intend to



          2     figure out somehow how I can get into it, but --



          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Certainly the



          4     Supreme Court -- of course, you don't have a vehicle



          5     here with you today.



          6               MR. KUGLER:  No, I do not, or I would have



          7     gone over.  I have to get back right away.  Let's not



          8     take any more time with the hearing now and I'll just



          9     look at this after we are through, if I may.



         10               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, that is fine.



         11               MR. KUGLER:  If you have another question I



         12     can --



         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.  I guess



         14     beyond that then, the order was issued in 2005.  And



         15     then you received a notice that proof was due, and we



         16     issued an extension of time when you requested it.  And



         17     by my reading, that extension extended the time for



         18     proof being due to coincide with the 2005 order.  That



         19     is the way I read this, because the 2005 order -- let me



         20     look back.  I was looking in the wrong place.



         21               By the way, this order actually quotes at the



         22     time it was issued in 1995, Section 43-1805,



         23     subparagraph 7.  So it apparently was in place at the



         24     time this order was issued.



         25               But this order said at the -- this is 1994,
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          1     I'm sorry.  I meant to look at the 1995 order.



          2               The order that I'm referring to is an April



          3     4th -- is dated April 4th, 1995.  And the last condition



          4     under the order portion of the document states:  "This



          5     order does not grant a stay in development beyond



          6     December 31st, 1997."  Now, that language could be



          7     interpreted a couple of ways.  One way I guess it could



          8     be interpreted is that the stay in development is -- or



          9     the stay is finished and that the period of time for



         10     development starts to run again.



         11               MR. KUGLER:  That is what I thought it meant,



         12     because when it talked about well drilling expiring in



         13     '97, in fact, I thought by 1997 I could put into it,



         14     then I found out I couldn't.



         15               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, the request



         16     for extension of time we approved also said proof of



         17     beneficial use needed to be submitted by December 31st,



         18     1997.  Now, usually that setup, I guess, is a physical



         19     impossibility because a stay was in place, and this is



         20     the inconsistency, but we required the filing of proof



         21     which couldn't be because there was a stay.



         22               MR. KUGLER:  And still cannot.



         23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And you had a CRP



         24     contract (inaudible).



         25               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So then there was a



          2     second request for an extension of time that you filed.



          3     And this actually was filed, I think it's signed by



          4     Richard Hill.



          5               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.  He filed one in



          6     December, and I filed a different one separately myself,



          7     and I can't remember when I got it filed.  I filed one



          8     on my own, and I didn't see a copy of that, as I recall,



          9     in the papers I received.  I filed one, paid a $50 fee



         10     asking to go till 2006, and there is a letter in there



         11     telling me it was approved for the end of 2004, and I



         12     had requested to 2006.  And I didn't see that in that



         13     particular file.  Maybe it's me, because there was so



         14     much paper to go through trying to figure out in the



         15     copying process what fit where.



         16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  So what I



         17     have at least, and I'll try to reconcile those dates,



         18     but what I have is, I have an extension of time that was



         19     approved until December 31st, 1997.  Then I have another



         20     one that extended the time for development for another



         21     five years, and this was based on the CRP enrollment,



         22     until, December 1, 2002.  And then I have another one



         23     that -- and you filed for this one, and it extended the



         24     time for proof of beneficial use until December 1, 2007.



         25               MR. KUGLER:  There is one other one that Mr.
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          1     Hill filed.



          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, it was



          3     jointly filed.



          4               MR. KUGLER:  Okay.



          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:   So there is a dual



          6     signature on this one.



          7               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah, I remember he contacted me



          8     at some point in time during that period of time, even



          9     though I didn't have much remitting on my contract



         10     there.



         11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But this extended



         12     the date for submittal of proof until December 1, 2007.



         13     At that point in time you filed another request for



         14     extension of time, and that is what prompted the



         15     December 6, 2007 order from those signed by Jeff.



         16               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah.  I think there is a letter



         17     in there that shows that when I was concerned about the



         18     2007, which was the then end of my CRP contract.  I



         19     originally had thought it was 2006 when I put in one



         20     request.



         21               But anyway, I stopped in in September of 2000



         22     and was unable to get -- because the computers weren't



         23     working that day that I was in there.  Talking with the



         24     one lady, and then they sent me the information that



         25     said:  Here this is what you need to do with the
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          1     extension request, which I filled out at that particular



          2     point in time, yes.



          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So you are not



          4     contesting the issuance of these extensions of time.



          5               MR. KUGLER:  No, not at all.



          6               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  They are documents



          7     that extend the permit --



          8               MR. KUGLER:  Just how it affects me, and that



          9     is the inconsistency that I talked about between, Hey,



         10     there is no way I could ever comply with that until I am



         11     able to drill a well and put the water on it.



         12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So are you



         13     contesting the ability of the Department now to issue



         14     another order continuing the indefinite stay in the



         15     development period?



         16               MR. KUGLER:  Yes, because at this particular



         17     point in time I can alleviate it, and that precludes me



         18     from being able to drill a well and convert it to what



         19     it was originally intended.



         20               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.  All right.



         21     Well, I understand the arguments.  And I don't know that



         22     we need to go over anything else.  Is there anything



         23     that else that you want to discuss with us?



         24               MR. KUGLER:  No.  That concludes what I have



         25     and what I know at this particular point in time.  I do
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          1     appreciate the chance to let me look at your code



          2     sections here for a few minutes.



          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.



          4               Jeff, do you have anything you want to ask at



          5     this point?



          6               MR. PEPPERSACK:  No.



          7               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  All right.



          8     Thank you.



          9               MR. KUGLER:  I just hope I've come up with the



         10     showing that conditions will be alleviated as is set



         11     forth, as against what is in -- and do that which I have



         12     not been able to do.  And that this insignificant



         13     consumption aspect is material to you and that you are



         14     able to find something from a mitigation standpoint as a



         15     result of my particular problems in this particular



         16     relevant time.



         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  And the



         18     current period of CRP enrollment expires when?



         19               MR. KUGLER:  September 30th, 2009.



         20               On October 1 I can start to put water in, and



         21     I have been given permission to drill a well on it.



         22     That is only oral, I don't have it in writing, from the



         23     Department with the Power County agent.



         24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  You say by the



         25     Department, you are talking about someone from Power
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          1     County.



          2               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  The Department of



          3     Agriculture that deals with my CRP contract.



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.



          5               MR. KUGLER:  He has authorized me, to say you



          6     can put a well on it, but you cannot develop, further



          7     development at this time.



          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So he says you can



          9     put a well on when?



         10               MR. KUGLER:  Now.  I can put one on tomorrow.



         11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That doesn't



         12     violate the terms of the CRP.



         13               MR. KUGLER:  He says it will not violate the



         14     terms in this last year of concern.  He said, You can't



         15     put water on it because that would be a violation.



         16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Very good.



         17     Thanks for your efforts and your traveling over, John,



         18     nice to see you again.



         19               MR. KUGLER:  Tell Debby thank you for



         20     arranging to have that proceeding right here.  I didn't



         21     even know it existed, and to accommodate me as far as



         22     time so I can get down and back in a day.



         23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Sure.  Very good.



         24     Okay.  We'll close the record.  Thanks.



         25               (End of audio tape.)
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